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I Chairman’s Statement

ETE®mE

Technology Venture Holdings Limited (TVH) experienced a year of change in 2002
which led to a restructuring of its business operations, and most importantly, a
strident new move to bring TVH closer to the everyday life of mainland Chinese

people and their needs.

ZERREBERAA (FB) t—SE_FREETEASE AMEETETEXXK

BFI - REEHNZ  FEFEL THEHHBE HENABRNARHEE  BRER

Dear Members,

Global information technology (IT) market remained sluggish in
2002 and despite signs of a gradual recovery in coming years,
we believe that such rebound momentum would very likely be
dampened by persisting over-capacity and fierce vendor

competition.

Given such worldwide trends, China’s IT market in 2002 recorded
a lethargic expansion of 4% and negative growth in the hardware
market, according to International Data Corporation (IDC). It says
the hardware market is expected to recover in 2003 but
competition is expected to remain tough leading prices to fall.
Nevertheless, IDC predicts an annual average growth rate of 20%
in China’s overall IT spending until 2006 and higher proportions

of software and services as the market is becoming more mature.

Against such difficult conditions, TVH continued to consolidate
and rationalize its operations to strengthen competitiveness and
improve operating efficiency in 2002 with improved operating
results. Excluding the non-recurring loss on the disposal of DMX
Technologies, the Group successfully narrowed net loss

significantly compared with the previous year.

REFINED BUSINESS STRATEGIES

TVH has been a committed provider of state-of-the-art IT products
and services in China. In the past decade, TVH has gradually
evolved from a trader of packaged technologies to an enhanced

IT solutions developer and provider that caters to specific customer
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needs in China. Significant investments have been made to
incubate a team of elite local IT professionals, develop customized
software products and establish a nationwide servicing network,
reflecting the Group’s commitment to making a significant

contribution in building China’s IT infrastructure.

With the fast shifting economic and social landscape of the
country, we believe that this is the right time for us to move one
strategic step forward, to get in pulse with the needs of the
Chinese people and assimilate our offerings into their everyday
life. Being an established and leading solutions provider in China

facilitates the Group to make this big leap forward.

2002 represented a landmark year for TVH as the Group
sharpened the business focus for all of its business divisions to
better capture development and growth opportunities, and at
the same time pooled resources and expertise to spearhead into

new growth areas in China.

From years of operating business in China, the TVH management
witnesses the country’s fast social evolution with the emergence
of a growing middle class that yearns for intellectual
enhancements and professional training services. Our directors
(Directors) believe that successful businesses in China are those
that are in tandem with the country’s social reform and structural
evolution, and one of TVH's strategies to tap into this potentially
powerful growth reserve is through the provision of IT-enabled

education and training services to students and professionals.
CORE BUSINESS

Although the future of the overall IT market remains unclear,
TVH believes that the provision of IT-enabled and support services
for specific sectors in China will still present growth opportunities.
All of the Group's divisions — TopAsia, Sequent China and ADT —
have been re-positioned to become more service-oriented
operations to provide TVH a steady and recurrent cash-based

income.
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TopAsia, the Group’s peripherals systems-integration business,
continues to broaden its core business to encompass the provision
of maintenance services-oriented solutions, in addition to its
traditional business as one of the leading automatic teller
machines (ATM) systems integrators in China. With established IT
expertise and connections with the financial institutions in China,

TopAsia is geared to becoming a comprehensive solutions provider

for the financial services sector.

Sequent China, the Group’s mainframe systems-integration
business, continues to explore niche products to increase the
computing power of banking and finance customers in China, in
addition to the provision of technical support and maintenance
services. This operation is working more closely with TopAsia to

provide more comprehensive solutions for clients.

ADT, the Group’s banking and finance systems-integration arm,
has expanded the breadth and depth of its banking enabling
capabilities, making further advances into software development
and developing one-stop maintenance services. The Group is now

actively reviewing its investment strategy in the 55%-owned ADT.

DMX TECHNOLOGIES

In October 2002, the Group announced the disposal of its entire
61% interests in DMX for HK$50 million, incurring a non-recurring
loss of approximately HK$119 million that posted a significant
negative impact on the Group’s results for the year. The disposal
decision was made to facilitate the listing of DMX on Singapore
Exchange, as the Group was unable to secure a waiver from The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Exchange) for the
remaining units of the Group from the minimum profit
requirement as set out in Rule 8.05 of the Listing Rules pursuant

to paragraph 3(c) of Practice Note 15 of the Listing Rules.

Prior to its listing, DMX leveraged on the Group’s resources to
finance its operations and development. We considered that if

DMX could not obtain the necessary funding from a listing, a
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significant management and financial burden would arise on the
part of the Group to support the operation of DMX which
nevertheless would in turn affect other businesses of the Group.
We therefore considered that there would be serious damaging
effects to the operation of DMX which in turn would affect the
operations and operating results of the Group if DMX fails to
obtain a separate listing status. This would also result in a
significant diminution in the value of the Group’s investment in

DMX.

Reasons behind the disposal of DMX had led the Group to
revaluate the merits of its development strategy by acquisition
under prevailing circumstances. The near-term focus would be to
initiate internal growth impetus through leveraging existing
expertise and resources to capture niche markets. Simultaneously,
all business units of TVH would further enhance the service

content of their respective operations to increase profitability.
NEW GROWTH AREA: EDUCATION AND TRAINING

ChinaCast, in which the Group holds a 19.9% interest as a long-
term strategic investment, continues to be the leading provider
of satellite-based distance learning services in China. In December
2002, ChinaCast and TVH launched China’s first integrated
education resources portal, teacher.com.cn for teachers and
principals of the K-12 (kindergarten to grade 12) education
market, under a profit sharing arrangement with Chinese partners.
It is estimated that the portal’s earnings would exceed HK$90

million in two years.

ChinaCast has also achieved significant progress in the provision
of tertiary education services and professional training to
practitioners in need of recognized qualification. In 2000,
ChinaCast launched a broadband interactive education platform
for the rollout of general education programs and since then, it
has become China’s largest online tertiary program provider in
partner with 14 universities, including Peking University, Sha’anxi

Normal University, Southwestern Normal University and Beijing
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University of Aeronautics. For vocational training, ChinaCast has
entered into a collaborative agreement with the Ministry of Labour
and Social Security to develop training and retraining programs
for government and private institutions in the country. Co-
operation arrangements have subsequently been made to operate
online training centers for the Judiciary, People’s Daily, China

Coal Industry Safety Bureau and other institutions.

ChinaCast's successful headway into China’s education and
training sector has inspired TVH to tap further into this vast
reserve of tremendous market potential and demands. As China
puts increasing emphasis on revitalizing the country through
education and technology, online distance learning emerges as
the most efficient and cost effective conduit to compensate for
the inadequate education infrastructure to satisfy the huge
demand of an enormous population in need of education and
continued training. Total government spending on education in
China is expected to more than double to US$90 billion by 2005
from the 1999 level.

At present, there are some 1,200 higher education institutions in
China that can only accommodate 11% of the estimated 100
million qualified students. The government plans to raise the
level to 20% by 2010. The Ministry of Education has initially
approved 67 universities to initiate e-learning courses and some
240,000 students have been registered for online courses. It is
expected that in five years’ time, the number of distance learning

students will exceed that of on-campus students.

Apart from education, professional training is also a market of
huge potential. An independent study estimates the market size
of Internet-based corporate distance learning (IDL) services will
grow to US$600 million by 2004, from US$400 million in 2001.
The provision of platform services will account for a third of the

revenue with the remainder taken up by content delivery.

We believe that the provision of online education and training
services in China that is in need of grooming a large generation

of professionals to fulfill its development and growth goals would
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be a significant growth driver. Importantly, the Group already
enjoys strong competitive edges in developing this market as
TVH encompasses substantial IT expertise and resources as the
technological backbone, and established relationships with
government and educational authorities in China. These are

significant entry barriers for warding off competition.

As education and training programs are of durations spanning
from a few months to several years, we believe that such recurrent
income generating capacity on profit-sharing basis will bring to
the Group a steady income stream. Also, the programs can be
rolled over to other cities and provinces through franchising,
thus broadening the income base. We aim to grow this new
business sector into a sizeable revenue source contributing
approximately 30% to the Group’s total in two years’ time, with
the banking sector remaining the largest contributor of

approximately 70% of revenues.

Looking forward, TVH remains committed to bringing to customers
in Asia advanced technologies and niche products and services
to meet customer needs. And from 2003, this niche product and
service will be closely related to China’s education and training

market for different population segments.

Finally, | would like to welcome Mr Emmy Wu as deputy chairman
of the Group and also take this opportunity to extend my sincerest
thanks to all our staff, our technology and business partners and

our shareholders for their unwavering support in the year under
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REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

In 2002, the Group’s turnover decreased 40% year on year to
HK$343,868,000 (2001: HK$576,387,000), largely because of a
drop in sales of hardware both in the mainframe and computer
peripheral units, reflecting the Group's strategic measures to shift
its income base from hardware sales to service provision. The
new direction, which came into effect last year, was in line with
market demand trends and intended to generate steady and

recurrent cash-based revenues.

During the year, the Group re-aligned its focus on higher-margin
servicing business and continued to pursue a series of
consolidation and rationalization measures, resulting in the
achievement of improved gross margins and operating results.
Excluding the non-recurring loss on disposal of DMX Technologies
and provisions of HK$122,325,000, the loss attributable to
shareholders of the Group for 2002 decreased by approximately
53% to HK$25,544,000, compared with HK$54,928,000 in 2001,

excluding the provision of HK$33,880,000.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2002 (2001: Nil).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Core Business

TopAsia continues its transformation into a services provider with
its operating mechanism restructured to complement this goal.
Significant efforts have been invested into strengthening
relationships with financial institutions and exploring cooperation
potential with them. In addition to its traditional business as one
of the leading ATM systems integrators in China, TopAsia is geared
to becoming a comprehensive solutions provider for the financial

services sector.

In large storage market, TopAsia has advanced its partnership

with EMC, the world’s largest independent provider of enterprise
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intelligence storage systems and software, and was named by

EMC as the “Best Logistics Operator 2002".

In addition to traditional network integration projects, TopAsia
has made a successful entry into the customer relationship
management (CRM) market through a cooperation arrangement
with NCR. It has developed a highly effective CRM system for

China Postal Bureau, using NCR's data warehouse system.

TopAsia believes that active business pursuits must be supported
by refined internal structure and cost-efficient operating
mechanism. In 2002, it was awarded the internationally
recognized 1SO9001:2000 quality assurance certificate, reflecting
the division’s dedication in optimising management structure,

financial system and business flows.

Looking ahead, TopAsia will continue to build growth and create
value on services, or more specifically the provision of
comprehensive services for a digitalized financial industry. It will
also step up co-operation with ATM manufacturers for automated
product offerings, and with NCR and EMC for new business

opportunities relating to data storage and databank systems.

TopAsia experienced a year of consolidation in 2002 that led to a
sharpened focus and a well-defined business direction for 2003.
Further efforts will be made to lower operating costs, improve
efficiency and enhance the division’s competitiveness in taking

up challenges ahead.

Sequent China, the Group’s mainframe systems-integration arm
for China’s banking and finance sector, sustains its privileged
market position for Symmetry and Numa-Q mainframe systems
and services, and has secured all of the related technical support
and maintenance services contracts. Hardware upgrade and
expansion services were also provided for several existing banking

customers.

Product diversification has always been a major initiative for
Sequent China. It has set up a special task force to explore and

develop niche products to increase the computing power of

8
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existing and potential customers. Products developed included
PloyServe and Solid State Discs (SSD), a new-generation file-
caching product designed to enhance applications contributing

to enterprise-grade data-center solutions.

In 2003, Sequent China will capitalise on its mainframe expertise
to gear towards the development of data centers for financial
and educational establishments as a new income stream of
significant potential. It is envisaged that the business of Sequent
China will be assimilated into TopAsia as a consolidated platform
for IT service offerings. The two teams are now working closely

together to provide comprehensive solutions for customers.

In view of the bleak outlook for Hong Kong’s e-commerce and
public-sector demands for software services, TopSoft has shifted
its focus to China and other viable businesses. The team has

therefore been redeployed to the Group’s other divisions.

ADT is a 55%-owned subsidiary of the TVH Group. It develops
and provides advanced systems-integration and software solutions

for the banking and finance sector in China.

Jointly with Microsoft China, it has secured a landmark business
network catalogue management consultancy contract for the head
office of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC),
making it the first and only provider of this specific service. ADT
plans to market this management consultancy services to other
branches of ICBC in 2003.

ADT also opened up a new revenue stream in network
maintenance services. In this area, ADT has concluded agreements
with seven branches of ICBC and two branches of the China
Construction Bank (CCB). The goal for 2003 is to expand the
business scope to 15 branches. ADT aims at becoming a
comprehensive network security service provider to ICBC. To
facilitate this, ADT has formed co-operation pacts with
international leading network management providers Netscout
and Packeteer to launch enhanced solutions and professional

consultancy services.

In 2002, ADT successfully developed and registered 12 new

software products targeted at banks in China, including software
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for information management and foreign exchange trading.
Registration application is also in process for two additional
software products. The division believes that it has grown its
software portfolio to a desirable scale for more pro-active and
export-driven sales and marketing campaigns, and will continue
efforts to develop state-of-the-art software with broader

prospects.

The division’s international software department will also explore
outsourcing projects of larger scale for more stable income and

as an additional income source other than NEC of Japan.

To ensure all software products are of international standards,
ADT has set up a process-monitoring unit at its software
development center to strengthen management control. Intensive
grooming is in place for two to three team members to secure
official accreditation as project managers, and there are also
pursuits to elevate the software development center to attain
the CMM3 performance standards. The division believes that,
through more effective quality control, profit margin will be
improved. In fact, ADT has been admitted as a member of the
esteemed Society of Software Enterprises, reflecting the division’s
recognized reputation in the field. The division’s paramount
development capability is further ascertained as its ESTAT statistics
system has become a sponsored project by the innovation fund

of the Haidian District in Beijing for the year.

ADT is geared to expand its customer base with the addition of
at least one large-scale bank and increase its product offerings in
2003.

New Growth Area: Education and Training

TVH’'s new business initiative to tap the vast and rapidly growing
education and training market of China was a result of its
association with ChinaCast, in which the Group holds as a long-
term strategic investment. ChinaCast continues to be the leading

provider of satellite-based distance learning services in China.

In December 2002, ChinaCast and TVH joined hands with China
Northeast Normal University and Beijing Dong Shi Da Co to

finance and launch China’s first integrated education resources
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portal teacher.com.cn for teachers and principals of primary and
secondary schools in China, under a profit sharing arrangement.
ChinaCast operates the satellite link while TVH is the supplier of

mainframes, middleware, databases and application software.

More than 10 million teachers at some 570,000 primary and
secondary schools in China are required by law to renew their
teaching certificates every five years. Satellite-based distance
learning through teacher.com.cn is recognized by the Ministry of
Education as counting towards the certificates. It is estimated
that the portal earnings would exceed HK$90 million in two

years.

In 2000, ChinaCast launched a broadband interactive education
platform for general education purposes, benefiting hundreds of
primary and secondary schools. The platform has integrated
excellent education resources from Central Education Science
Institute, Beijing Normal University's Experimental Secondary
School and Jingshan School and is recognized by authorities and

schools in Jilin, Shanxi and Hebei provinces.

ChinaCast achieved significant progress in the provision of tertiary
education and professional training services to practitioners in
need of recognized qualification. In addition to the MBA distance-
learning program with Peking University, it has also completed
collaborative programs with 14 higher education establishments,
including Sha'anxi Normal University, Southwest Normal University
and Beijing University of Aeronautics. In professional training,
co-operation arrangements have been entered into with the
training centers of the Judiciary, People’s Daily and the China
Coal Industry Safety Bureau, following its collaboration with the

Ministry of Labour and Social Security.

As the Group will be actively developing the education and
training services market in China in 2003, its collaboration with
ChinaCast and its education and government partners will play a

pivotal role in this major drive.
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DMX Technologies

In October 2002, the Group announced the disposal of its entire
61% interests in DMX for HK$50 million, incurring a non-recurring
loss of approximately HK$119,309,000. The disposal decision was
made to facilitate the listing of DMX on Singapore Exchange, as
the Group was unable to secure a waiver from the Stock Exchange
for the remaining units of the Group from the minimum profit
requirement as set out in Rule 8.05 of the Listing Rules pursuant

to paragraph 3(c) of Practice Note 15 of the Listing Rules.

Prior to its listing, DMX leveraged on the Group's resources to
finance its operations and development. The Directors considered
that if DMX could not obtain the necessary funding from a listing,
a significant management and financial burden would arise on
the part of the Group to support the operation of DMX which
nevertheless would in turn affect other businesses of the Group.
The Directors therefore considered that there would be serious
damaging effects to the operation of DMX which in turn would
affect the operations and operating results of the Group if DMX
failed to obtain a separate listing status. This would also cause a
significant diminution in the value of the Group’s investment in
DMX.

The disposal of DMX has called for a critical review of the overall
investment and business development strategy of TVH, the
direction of which was detailed in the Chairman’s Statement

section of this report.
LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Net assets

As at 31 December 2002, the Group recorded total assets of
approximately HK$323,036,000 which were financed by liabilities
of approximately HK$144,585,000 and equity of approximately
HK$172,542,000. The Group’s net asset value as at 31 December
2002 decreased by 30% to approximately HK$172,542,000 as
compared to approximately HK$245,747,000 as at 31 December
2001.

12

Annual Report 2002 F #§

B \anagement Discussion and Analysis

RAMEK

EER-_ZTZT_F+ A RMHLA5,0008 5 T
RE BHEEFMIFE261%%REHX#E
7 A M85 49119,309,0007 JT IEAE & 14
BE-SEREHE LR JTTARZA
RIGtEIEF MER S LT B ERE
BRUEESF SE AR TEBRERFE
7 | T 651 55 8.05 16 B 158 N 3(c) Bk
sl 2 &ERFER EBEIFAREK T A
BRXFEIS B e MEG AR
BHEH & -

BARBE FMAlEFZXREEERENE
FNEHEERER-SEESRA W
ERBEAEERIMESHTES &
BREEESIRHZARNEE ASeRE
EEMHRRERE FERNEAE EE
%B&%m%%%@ﬁﬁ%%%%i@’ﬁﬁ&m
RAIBEREE ARG B EHi
E'B'J‘i’ HZARIKEE LAI%M%IE@
HERCEEBEENBREEEZ - IR
NERNAEBEREENEEER-.

SEEERZRAMRE CEMFHERER
BREBHERRB - KFENHFEB LR B
ERERPFEERE —BAFML-

RBESKMBER
EERE
R-BE_F+-_A=+—B AEEHEZ

=
& EMEXIZE323,036,000 00 R BE
B E49144,585,000%8 T R E A K f#HEL
172,542,000 T - AKBR T _F +
A=+ - RAZEEFELNA
172,542,000 T MR =FZE—F+=A4
=+ — B A4 %&245,747,0007% 7T * R i@
E30%-°



B \anagement Discussion and Analysis
EEESWE DN

Liquidity

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$90,655,000 as at 31 December 2002 (2001: approximately
HK$129,045,000). After deducting bank loans and overdrafts of
approximately HK$12,993,000 (2001:
HK$36,917,000), the Group recorded a net cash balance of
approximately HK$77,662,000 as compared to that of
approximately HK$92,128,000 as at 31 December 2001. As at
31 December 2002, the current ratio has been changed to 1.84
(2001: 1.67) and the gearing ratio has been changed to 0.08
(2001: 0.15) which defined as the Group’s interest-bearing and

approximately

secured bank loans and finance lease payables over its total equity.

Charges on assets

At 31
HK$30,425,000 (2001: HK$31,936,000) were pledged to banks

to secure banking facilities granted.

December 2002, fixed deposits of approximately

Treasury policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated resources and credit facilities provided by banks in
Hong Kong. Subsidiaries in PRC use short-term borrowing in PRC
to finance working capital, which amount to HK$12 million.
Borrowing methods used by the Group mainly include trust receipt
loans, overdrafts and term loans. The interest rates of most of
these are fixed by reference to the Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate.
Both bank deposits and borrowings are mainly in Hong Kong
dollars and United States dollars (“US dollars”).

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2002, the Company had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees given to banks in connection with facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$86
million, of which HK$60 million was provided by the Group to a
bank for banking facilities granted to DMX, a subsidiary disposed
of during the year. The guarantee in respect of the banking

facilities granted to DMX was terminated on 24 February 2003.

RBEE

AEER-ZZEZT-_F+A=1+—RHZH
& RIRTT4E 8RB E 4 A 90,655,0007 7T
(ZZZ —1%:129,045,0007% 7T ) - RN
BITER KB X 412,993,000 7L (=F
=T —4:4936,917,0008 7T) 14 ANEE 2
RIS B E77,662,0008 L MR =Z
T—F+=-A=+—HAI4%92,128,000
BIL-R_ZET_F+_RA=+—H2ZnR
B X A1.84 (=T —F:1.67) MiaR
b= B50.08 (=T —%:0.15) AEE
ZHBERARFRITERRBERE R
FRIE B DA AR R o

EEER

R-_TBZE-_F+_A=+—R8 XNEEH
47 30,425,000 T (= T & — F :
31,936,000 7T) 2 & BATF SAEH T 3R 1T -
LARGERITRLE ©

BB BE

AEE-REBABECHBERITHET
ZIEERBERHEEREEMTES L
RRBEZHBRRIAREZEREEER
2EE S ©% 712,000,000 T AKH
RAZBEETATERBEETEEER
BXRAEHER LM EREEZLZH L
ABOLRETHBENEXEE - RITF
AEREEEZUABTRETREM-

RREME

RZZZEZF+A=+—H X2 A
BTETHEBARZ@ME MG T2 RV
ZFERB A A EA86,000,000% T+ &

60,000,0007% 7T B AN S @ 5 TR FE A
&2 B A B R REH A RIT B A iR 3
FHRIT-AUBRTRABBZRITHREE
RER-—_EE=F-"F-+WOBEKI-



Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERHEBHERA A

EEERWHED M

As at 31 December 2002, the banking facilities granted to the
subsidiaries and DMX were utilized to the extent of approximately
HK$1,106,000 and HK$4,825,000 respectively.

The Group has contingent liability in respect of possible future
long service payments to employees under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance as some of current employees have
achieved the required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under the
Employment Ordinance if their employment is terminated under
certain circumstances. A provision has not been recognised in
respect of such possible payments, as it is not considered probable
that the situation will result in a material future outflow of

resources from the Group.
Foreign exchange exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in US dollars
and Hong Kong dollars. Foreign exchange exposure of the Group
is minimal as long as the policy of the Government of HKSAR to

link the Hong Kong dollars to the US dollars remains in effect.
Employee and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2002, the Group employed approximately
370 full time staff in the Mainland China and Hong Kong. The
Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
work experience and the prevailing market price. Performance
related bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other
employee benefits include mandatory provident fund, insurance
and medical coverage, training programs and share option

scheme.
APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

In May 2002, the Company received net proceeds of
approximately HK$30 million through a placement to institutional
and professional investors (the “fourth placement”). The Group

has utilized it as general working capital.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chan Tze Ngon, Ron, aged 47, is the chairman of the
Company. He founded the Group in November 1993 and has
overall responsibility for TVH’s strategic direction, and shapes its
business model and master plan. He holds master’s degrees in
mathematics and computer science from Concordia University,
Canada. Before founding the Group, Mr Chan has more than 17
years of experience working with multi-national IT vendors, where

he had held senior management positions.

Mr Emmy Wu, aged 46, is the deputy chairman of the Company
and responsible for the strategic and investment planning of the
Group. Mr Wu has over 20 years of experience in IT sales,
marketing and management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Wu
had held various management positions in a leading pan-Asia
systems integrator and was responsible for its overall business
performance in Asia Pacific as well as being the advisor to their

president in Japan.

Mr Tang Kin Hung, Barry, aged 42, executive director, takes
charge of the Group’s banking and e-commerce enabling
operations in China. He graduated from the University of Hong
Kong with a bachelor’s degree in social sciences. Mr Tang joined
the Group in February 1994 following previous senior marketing
and management assignments with various multi-national vendors

for over 14 years.

Mr Chow Siu Lam, Cliff, aged 38, executive director, is
responsible for the Company’s financial advisory functions. He
earned his bachelor’s degree from the University of Washington,
US and has over 12 years of experience in accounting and
investment banking. Mr Chow joined the Group in April 2000
and prior to that has held senior positions in leading investment
banks in Hong Kong. He is a member of the American Institute

of Certified Public Accountants.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Luk Chung Po, Terence, aged 48, is the non-executive
director of the Company. He received his bachelor’s degree in
business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and commands extensive experience in telecoms and information
technology for over 23 years. Mr Luk has held senior marketing
and management positions in and served as the major contributor
of growth to the China operations of various multi-national IT

entities.

Dr Lo Siew Kiong, John, O.B.E., J.P., aged 63, is an independent
non-executive director. Dr Lo has over 33 years of senior
management experience in various manufacturing fields in Asia,
ranging from consumer, industrial to aerospace military
specification products manufacturing. He is the honorary chairman
of the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, the honorary
chairman of the Hong Kong Standards and Testing Centre and
the chairman of Hong Kong Quality & Reliability Centre of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr Lo was also the vice-
chairman of the Hong Kong Productivity Council from 1988 to
1993. In addition, he serves in several government advisory

committees.

Dr Chou Tao Hsiung, Joseph, aged 79, is an independent non-
executive director. Dr Chou currently holds senior management
positions in several companies in the information technology
industry. He is the chief executive advisor to Taiwan Secom Co.,
Ltd. and has also previously held senior positions in a number of
reputable IT firms. Dr Chou received his master’s degree in
agriculture economics from Cornell University, the US and his

PhD in econometrics from lowa State University, the US.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Fan Li, aged 47, assumes overall management responsibility
for the Group’s banking and financial peripheral product offering
and servicing network in China. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
electrical technology from Nanjing University of Science and
Technology, China. Mr Fan has more than 19 years of IT

experience and joined the Group in August 1997.

Mr Chu Lik Chung, aged 51, co-manages the Group’s banking
and financial peripheral product offering and servicing network
in China. Mr Chu is a graduate of the Eastern China Normal
University, Shanghai with a diploma in Chinese language and
literature. He has more than 13 years of IT experience and joined

the Group in June 2000.

Mr Wu Xuan, aged 38, is Sequent China’s general manager,
also the deputy general manager of the Shanghai representative
office and director of customer services. He graduated from Peking
University in 1988 with a master's and bachelor’s degree in
computing and mathematics. Mr Wu started as an engineer and
project manager with a research institute under the State's
Ministry of Electrical and Engineering, and moved on to the private

sector in 1991. He joined the Group in January 1994.

Mr Siu Hon Kwan, aged 41, is the logistics manager responsible
for the shipping and logistics functions of the Group. He holds a
diploma in business management from Glasgow Polytechnic, UK.

Mr Siu joined the Group in February 1994.

Ms Tong Pui Wah, Lisa, aged 41, is the Group's finance manager
and company secretary. She is a fellow member of various
accountancy bodies in UK, Hong Kong and Australia. Ms Tong
brings 15 years’ experience in finance and administration with

large multi-national groups.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of

Technology Venture Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be
held at the Board Room of 8th Floor, Tianjin Building, 167

Connaught Road West, Hong Kong on Friday, 23 May 2003 at

11:00 a.m. to transact the following ordinary business:

1. to receive and consider the audited consolidated financial

statements and reports of the directors and auditors for

the year ended 31 December 2002;

2. to re-elect directors and to authorise the board of directors

to fix the directors’ remuneration;

3. to re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of

directors to fix their remuneration;

and, as special business, to consider and,

if thought fit, pass

with or without amendments, the following resolutions as

Ordinary Resolutions:

4. “THAT:

subject to paragraph (c) below, pursuant to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the
exercise by the directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all the
powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal
with unissued shares (“Share” and each a
“Share”) of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the
Company and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options, including warrants to subscribe for
Shares, which might require the exercise of such
powers be and the same is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise

the directors of the Company during the Relevant

AR
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Period to make or grant offers, agreements and
options which might require the exercise of such

powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital
allotted issued and dealt with or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
issued and dealt with (whether pursuant to options
or otherwise) by the directors of the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as
defined below); or (ii) the exercise of any options
granted under any share option scheme of the
Company; or (iii) any scrip dividend or similar
arrangements providing for the allotment and issue
of Shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend
on Shares in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company in force from time to time; or (iv) any
issue of Shares upon the exercise of rights of
subscription or conversion under the terms of any
warrants of the Company or any securities which
are convertible into Shares, shall not exceed the

aggregate of:

(aa) 20 per cent. of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the date of the

passing of this Resolution; and

(bb)  (if the directors of the Company are so
authorised by a separate ordinary
Resolution of the shareholders of the
Company) the nominal amount of any
share capital of the Company repurchased
by the Company subsequent to the passing
of this Resolution (up to a maximum
equivalent to 10 per cent. of the aggregate

nominal amount of the share capital of
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BRERBFEFXREBA

the Company in issue on the date of the

passing of this Resolution),

and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of

this Resolution shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of the passing of this Resolution until

whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of
the Company, the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) or any
other applicable law of Bermuda to be

held; and

(iii) the passing of an ordinary resolution by
the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting revoking or varying the
authority given to the directors of the

Company by this Resolution;

“Rights Issue” means an offer of Shares, or offer
or issue of warrants, options or other securities
giving rights to subscribe for Shares open for a
period fixed by the directors of the Company to
holders of Shares on the register on a fixed record
date in proportion to their then holdings of Shares

(subject to such exclusion or other arrangements
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5. “THAT:

A AEE S

as the directors of the Company may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements, or having regard to any restrictions
or obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of, or the expense or delay which
may be involved in determining the existence or
extent of any restrictions or obligations under the
laws of, or the requirements of, any jurisdiction
outside Hong Kong or any recognised regulatory

body or any stock exchange outside Hong Kong).”

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by
the directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period of all powers of the Company to purchase
the Shares of the Company and warrants of the
Company, subject to and in accordance with the
rules and regulations of the Securities and Futures
Commission, the Stock Exchange, the Companies
Act and all other applicable laws in this regard,
be and the same is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of Shares and
warrants which may be purchased by the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) during
the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10 per cent.

of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued
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share capital of the Company or 10 per cent. of
the aggregate amount of outstanding warrants
of the Company (as the case may be) as at the
date of the passing of this Resolution and the
authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of this

Resolution shall be limited accordingly; and

(©) for the purposes of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the date of the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is the

earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of
the Company, the Companies Act or any
other applicable law of Bermuda to be
held; and

(iii) the passing of an ordinary resolution by
the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting revoking or varying the
authority given to the directors of the

Company by this Resolution.”

6. “THAT conditional upon the passing of Resolutions 4 6.

and 5 as set out in the notice convening this meeting,
the aggregate nominal amount of the number of Shares
that shall have purchased by the Company after the date
thereof pursuant to and in accordance with Resolution 5
shall be added to the aggregate nominal amount of Shares
that may be issued and allotted or agreed conditionally
or unconditionally to be issued and allotted by the

directors of the Company pursuant to the general mandate
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to issue and allot granted to the directors of the Company

by Resolution 4.”

“THAT subject to and conditional upon the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange granting listing of, and
permission to deal in, the Shares to be issued pursuant
to the exercise of options which may be granted under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme (as defined below), the

refreshment of the scheme limit of the Company’s share

LB G EGIT R B R E AR
P An TE B ©

(B BERAEMHMETEES
WER -—TT - FEREAEIRE
(E&ERTX) AR 2 BARE
BAER PHITZRHD ETRES
B EHARANR_ZZT=_FFA
=+ BEA BREGTERAA R

option scheme adopted on 30 May 2002 (“2002 Share FiE B s Rt &l 2 5t 8RR
Option Scheme”) and all other share option scheme(s) of NEESZSHAERKREREAD
BITRODEE 210% ([E#HE
PREE])  REBEEARDFEAESEH
TRFEBFEAXMASEREIR
and any director of the Company be and is hereby A

the Company, up to 10 per cent. of the number of Shares
in issue as at the date of passing this resolution

(“Refreshed Mandate Limit”) be and is hereby approved

authorized to do such act and execute such document to

effect the Refreshed Mandate Limit.”

By order of the board of directors AEEGm
Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZENBEEBERAT
Chan Tze Ngon, Ron FE

Chairman BRF 23

Hong Kong, 16 April 2003 &8 T =FMA+H

Registered office: Head office and Principal place T ERE 2 = 1 e T
of business in Hong Kong: B3 30

Clarendon House 8th Floor, Tianjin Building Clarendon House BB

2 Church Street 167 Connuaght Road West 2 Church Street T EF1675%
Hamilton HM 11 Hong Kong Hamilton HM11 REXNES8HE

Bermuda Bermuda
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Notes:

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened
by the above notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to
attend and, subject to the provisions of the bye-laws of the
Company, vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a shareholder
of the Company.

A form of proxy for use at the annual general meeting is enclosed.
In order to be valid, the form of proxy must be duly completed
and signed in accordance with the instructions printed thereon
and deposited together with a power of attorney or other
authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified
copy of that power or authority, at the offices of the Company’s
Hong Kong branch registrars, Tengis Limited at Ground Floor,
Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 48 hours before the time of
the meeting or adjourned meeting and in default the proxy shall
not be valid. Completion and return of a form of proxy will not
preclude a member from attending in person and voting at the
above meeting or any adjournment thereof, should he so wish.

In relation to proposed Resolution no. 2 above, Mr Emmy Wu
will retire and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at
the above meeting pursuant to bye-law 114 of the bye-laws of
the Company.

Dr Chou Tao Hsiung, Joseph and Mr Chow Siu Lam, Cliff will
retire from their respective offices of directors at the above
meeting pursuant to bye-law 111 of the bye-laws of the Company
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In relation to proposed Resolutions nos. 4 and 6 above, approval
is being sought from the shareholders for the grant to the
directors of a general mandate to authorise the allotment and
issue of Shares under the Listing Rules. The directors have no
immediate plans to issue any new Shares other than Shares which
may fall to be issued under the share option scheme of the
Company or any scrip dividend scheme which may be approved
by the shareholders.

In relation to proposed Resolution no. 5 above, the directors
wish to state that they will exercise the powers conferred thereby
to purchase Shares or warrants in circumstances which they deem
appropriate for the benefit of the shareholders. An explanatory
statement containing the information necessary to enable the
shareholders to make an informed decision to vote on the
proposed Resolution as required by the Listing Rules is set out in
another set of documents enclosed in the annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2002 sent to shareholders.

Wi
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2002.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are set

out in note 15 to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group discontinued the provision of broadband
Internet equipment, network security software and business software
systems following the disposal of DMX Technologies Group Limited
and its subsidiaries. Further details are included in note 4 to the

financial statements.

Other than the foregoing, there were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year and up to

the date of this report.

Results

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2002 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are

set out in the financial statements on pages 40 to 126.

Summary financial information

The following is a summary of the published consolidated/combined
results and the assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group,
prepared on the basis set out in the note below. This summary does

not form part of the audited financial statements.
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Summary financial information (continued)

Results
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Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE
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HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FiET FiET FiET
TURNOVER EER
Continuing operations SEEEEB 188,784 448,684 417,247 350,298 251,490
Discontinued operations B & [F ¥ 7% 155,084 127,703 - - -
343,868 576,387 417,247 350,298 251,490
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBIRIEAR / (E#E)
Continuing operations RBELEER (35,317) (89,178) 20,712 42,405 27,780
Discontinued operations B £ [F ¥ (99,863) 4,855 - - -
(135,180) (84,323) 20,712 42,405 27,780
Tax Fig (4,065) (333) (871) (6,205) (4,771)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE RAPERRES
MINORITY INTERESTS ARA (FR) (139,245) (84,656) 19,841 36,200 23,009
Minority interests LPYRERER (8,624) (4,152) (1,628) (1,922) (30)
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM ~ RRMEE A EE£%
ORDINARY ACTIVITIES ZEA (FER)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS (147,869) (88,808) 18,213 34,278 22,979
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EFTEeRs
Summary financial information (continued) HMBENBME (&)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS EE - BERLVERRES

31 December

+t=A=+-8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FiET FiET FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 58,761 137,165 94,675 27,983 6,152
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE 264,275 400,488 378,610 245,195 175,589
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE (143,632) (239,205) (128,364) (139,564) (151,651)
NET CURRENT ASSETS TRBEEFE 120,643 161,283 250,246 105,631 23,938
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EELER

CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE 179,404 298,448 344,921 133,614 30,090
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥FREBEE (953) (629) (1,529) (1,833) (1,037)
MINORITY INTERESTS DERRES (5,909) (52,072) (4,540) (2,158) (544)
172,542 245,747 338,852 129,623 28,509

Note [k:3

The summary of the published combined results of the Group for the year AEBEHEZE—NAANF+ZA=+—HIEFEZEAMH
ended 31 December 1998 has been extracted from the Company’s prospectus AHEEME NFEHAAQARR —ANAAFEAAA-+=
dated 22 June 1999 (the “Prospectus”). The summary was prepared based on AH#EzERER([ERER]) -ZBEDRFAKK
the audited financial statements of the companies then comprising the Group ~ SBEE TS AR —ANN\F+_A=+—HBHEHZESE
as at 31 December 1998, after appropriate adjustments and reclassifications, B ERENEHBEE ABRREN D EEHEE HUOER
as if the Group structure in the Prospectus had been in existence throughout ERAAEEZ ABRZVRFESLEFE-

that financial year.
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Fixed assets

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial

statements.
Share capital and share options

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor, are set

out in notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements, respectively.
Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

on page 43, respectively.
Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2002, the Company had no retained profits available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the Company’s
contributed surplus of HK$39,431,000 is currently unable to be
distributed. The Company’s share premium account, in the amount
of HK$341,072,000 at 31 December 2002, may be distributed in the

form of fully paid bonus shares.
Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.
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Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of the Company

During the year, the Company repurchased 1,524,000 ordinary shares
of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at an
aggregate consideration of HK$355,904 before expenses. The
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled. The repurchases
were effected by the directors for the enhancement of shareholders

value in the long term. Details of the shares repurchased are as

follows:

Month of Number of Shares
repurchase repurchased
| A5 BERGEE
July 2002 —TT-F+ A 1,062,000
August 2002 —TT-F)N\A 462,000
Total mEt 1,524,000
Brokerage and other expenses BOROEEZ

incurred on repurchase of shares LrAeshEMEAX

Except for the above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 35%
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 8% of the Group’s total
purchases.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

BE BEEORHERAAAZLHES

FA RARAREEBMAERSMARAAERE
1,524,00008 "2 B & @ik IR A A BRE AR
355,904 e FTiE Rl 2 IR D H B B sk th BB R Ty
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Price per share Aggregate

BERER consideration
Highest Lowest paid
BB BIE EERE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
0.25 0.22 259,180
0.21 0.208 96,724
355,904

5,107

361,011

B bt & S - AR B S E AR AT T I8 2 ) 0 4R P 3f
BE BRIHETANARA 2 EWES-

TEFEFRHESD

REBEFEXN AASERELERAREFIEH ZHEMN
AEBAFRZHEBRBIN30% -

AEERAARAREEFELZRBERFRER
B 235%  MEPRKAHEHELD 2 REE
8%-°

AAFEE WEZBBALIRBESSMANE
BARRBBEITIRAS% A L 2 BRI 7 G 1]
AEEAAREFPHMHERzESES-



Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBEAER QT

I Rcport of the Directors

EEEHRE

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive directors:
Mr Chan Tze Ngon, Ron
Mr Tang Kin Hung, Barry
Mr Chow Siu Lam, Cliff
Ms Teo Chor Khin, Jismyl
(appointed on 1 February 2002 and resigned on 21 July 2002)*
Mr Emmy Wu (appointed on 15 May 2002)
Non-executive directors:
Mr Luk Chung Po, Terence
Ms Teo Chor Khin, Jismyl
(appointed on 21 July 2002 and resigned on 15 October 2002)*

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr Lo Siew Kiong, John, O.B.E., J.P.
Dr Chou Tao Hsiung, Joseph

* Ms Teo Chor Khin, Jismyl resigned as executive director on 21 July
2002 and was re-appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company on the same date.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 16 April 2003, Mr Luk

Chung Po, Terence resigned as a non-executive director of the

Company.

In accordance with bye-law 114 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr Emmy
Wu will retire and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with bye-law 111 of the Company’s bye-laws, Dr Chou
Tao Hsiung, Joseph and Mr Chow Siu Lam, Cliff will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Apart from Mr Chan Tze Ngon,
Ron and Mr Emmy Wu, all the other directors of the Company,
including the non-executive directors, are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the provisions of the

Company's bye-laws.
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Directors’ and senior management’s biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and of the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 20 of

this annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, no director
had a material beneficial interest, either direct or indirect, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Related party transactions and connected transactions

Details of the related party transactions and connected transactions

of the Group are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ interests in share capital

At 31 December 2002, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the issued share capital of the Company or its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests)

Ordinance (the “SDI Ordinance”), were as follows:
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R-ZZ-F+-A=+—H RBEARFKIEZE
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FzaMmMics EERREIBMEALRELRR
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Number of issued ordinary

shares of HK$0.10 each

in the Company held Percentage of

Name of director Personal interests holding
EEgE BREXLAERMEE10E T

ERTEERZEAE R

B A B & Bk

Mr. Chan Tze Ngon, Ron BRF 2L HE 82,614,000 16.48

Mr. Luk Chung Po, Terence B LLE 33,630,000 6.71

Mr. Tang Kin Hung, Barry B 3t S A 12,600,000 2.51

In addition to the above, certain directors have non-beneficial personal
equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the
Company solely for the purpose of complying with the minimum

company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or their associates
had any personal, family, corporate or other interests in the equity
or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations

as defined in the SDI Ordinance.

BREdEN BFAARRIBRRARZHAE &
TEERARABEETHEARZFESEA
P A HE 2 o

BREXHWEEN EERREIHEALRERR
RAXEFEMEBERT (EBERBEERGKD) K
A EHFFRERATAEA R ARREMER-



I Rcport of the Directors
EEgRE

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Apart from the share option scheme disclosed in note 28 to the
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Share option scheme

Due to the adoption of the Hong Kong Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 34 “Employee benefits” during the year, most
of the detailed disclosures relating to the Company’s share option

scheme have been moved to note 28 to the financial statements.

Concerning the share options granted during the year to the directors
and employees as detailed in note 28 to the financial statements,
the directors do not consider it appropriate to disclose a theoretical
value of the options granted because in the absence of a readily
available market value of the share options on the ordinary shares of
the Company, the directors were unable to arrive at an accurate

assessment of the value of these share options.

Substantial shareholders

Other than the shares held by certain directors as set out in the

|u

section headed “Directors’ interests in share capital” above, no other
person had registered an interest in the issued share capital of the
Company that was required to be recorded in the register of interests

pursuant to Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance.

E=B ARONESZZER
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I Rcport of the Directors

EEEHRE

Code of Best Practice

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with the
Code of Best Practice (the “Code”), as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited throughout the accounting period covered by
this annual report, except that the non-executive directors of the
Company are not appointed for specific terms as required by
paragraph 7 of the Code, but are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in

accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.
Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee in 1999, which
comprises two independent non-executive directors, in accordance
with paragraph 14 of the Code. The audit committee meets regularly
mainly to consider the nature and scope of audit reviews, the
effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
control systems, and compliance with the relevant rules and

regulations.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chan Tze Ngon, Ron

Chairman

Hong Kong
16 April 2003
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I Rcport of the Auditors
=B RE

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

£ R & W F H oA

To the members
Technology Venture Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 40 to 126 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in Hong Kong.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently. It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those statements and to report our opinion

to you.
Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit
includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by
the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's
and the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately

disclosed.

*  For identification purpose only {£ % & 5l
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BB ORD R

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2002 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the
year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
16 April 2003
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I Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
mEBRRX

Year ended 31 December 2002 HE=-ZZTZET=_F+=-_A=+—"HLEFE

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
o FEIT FEIT
TURNOVER B 6
Continuing operations HEGEER 188,784 448,684
Discontinued operations BRI ER 4 155,084 127,703
343,868 576,387
Cost of sales HE K AR (261,433) (485,653)
Gross profit EH 82,435 90,734
Other income Hoph U = 6 3,159 5,465
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (31,631) (47,842)
Administrative expenses THER (56,584) (89,039)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries relating to HEDRIEEB 2
discontinued operations B2 R E B 4 (119,309) -
Other operating expenses Hig L8 A (11,956) (41,417)
LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REERIEIE 7 (133,886) (82,099)
Finance costs Bh & AR A 9 (1,294) (2,224)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BREBIAER S (BR)
Continuing operations FEREER (35,317) (89,178)
Discontinued operations B EET (99,863) 4,855
(135,180) (84,323)
Tax e 10
Continuing operations FEREER (10) 1,698
Discontinued operations B IEER (4,055) (2,031)
(4,065) (333)
LOSS BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS R D BB RERAEE (139,245) (84,656)
Minority interests 2 e (8,624) (4,152)
NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BREGCEEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS ZEER 11 (147,869) (88,808)
LOSS PER SHARE BRER 12
Basic HAR HK$0.33 HK$0.25
Diluted gz N/A N/A
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mEEEBBX
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Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt &t FET FA&T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBDEE
Fixed assets EE&EE 13 7,680 16,578
Deferred development costs i IE B R B AN 14 - 1,671
Goodwill (5ES 16 - 67,835
Long term investment RHERE 17 51,081 51,081
58,761 137,165
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories "8 18 24,945 14,795
Accounts and bills receivable BRI R E & 19 69,122 197,797
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BB % & & 20 67,114 50,392
H b P& R
Due from an investee company i N
2 HRIA 17 12,439 8,329
Tax recoverable Al W Bl B 18 - 130
Pledged time deposits EEMESHFER 21 30,425 31,936
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeEEYD 21 60,230 97,109
264,275 400,488
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts and bills payable ERERERER 22 26,272 86,160
Tax payable FE B AR IE 13,990 16,735
Accrued liabilities and other payables EitaBERAMEMNTK 23 89,851 99,123
Interest-bearing and secured bank loans MERBEBIEITER 24 12,993 36,917
Current portion of finance lease payables Rh & THE ' RIE
2 BIEAER 25 526 270
143,632 239,205
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEETFE 120,643 161,283




HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET

NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 120,643 161,283

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHERRDERE 179,404 298,448

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Finance lease payables A HEENRIA
Deferred tax IEFERL B

MINORITY INTERESTS DEBRRER

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital 1 50,121 36,200
Reserves 122,421 209,547

172,542 245,747

Chan Tze Ngon, Ron Tang Kin Hung
R+ 2 B f2 4t
Director Director

EF £
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B Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EREZEHHR

n‘/T\
Year ended 31 December 2002 BHE_-_ZTT_F+_A=+—HILFE
Reserves (note 29)
i (729
Retained
profits/
Share Exchange  (accumu-
Issued  premium Contributed ~ Goodwill fluctuation lated
capital  account surplus reserve reserve losses)  Sub-total Total
BT k& EXRE E#EF/
B& BEE HABRH EEHE e (REER) NG ast
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET T FET T FET T FET
(note 27)
(Kizt27)
At 1 January 2001 RZZZ-%
—-A-A 36,200 277,121 (19) (37,548) 45 61,243 300,842 337,042
Exchange realignment EHAZ - - - - 13 - 13 13
Net gains and losses not REBEEE
recognised in the profit BRZMER
and loss account BEEE - - - - 13 - 13 13
Additional consideration REAYE
paid for acquisition of WEARZHN
subsidiaries in prior year BHRE - - - (2,500) - - (2,500) (2,500)
Net loss for the year EEFEE - - - - (88,808)  (88,808)  (88,808)
At 31 December 2001 and ~ R-FZ—F+-f
1 January 2002 =+-Bk
“2T-F
—-R—H 36,200 277,121 (19) (40,048) 58 (27,565) 209,547 245,747
Exchange realignment MHERE - - - - (7) - (7) (7)
Net gains and losses not RAEBRE
recognised in the profit BRA W&
and loss account REBFE - - - - (7) - (7) (7)
Additional consideration HEAE
paid for acquisition of WEARZHN
subsidiaries in the prior year ~ EHMR(E - (3,200) - - (3,200) (3,200)
New issue of shares BAFRG 14,073 65,807 - - - 65,807 79,880
Share issue expenses RHETER - (1,648) - - - - (1,648)  (1,648)
Shares repurchased BEE RS (152) (209) - - - - (209) (361)
Net loss for the year FEFBE - - - - - (147,869) (147,869)  (147,869)
At 31 December 2002 RZZE=%F
+-A=+-H 50,121 341,071 (19) (43,248) 51 (175,434) 122,421 172,542




I Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEBERER

Year ended 31 December 2002 HE=-ZZTZET=_F+=-_A=+—"HLEFE

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Jiog= FET FHET
(Restated)
(E3))
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXKSIRZ2AER
Loss before tax B AR (135,180) (84,323)
Adjustments for: BTPSEELFHE:
Interest income B A 6 (2,110) (2,809)
Depreciation e 7 7,120 8,327
Amortisation of goodwill EEEE 7 6,174 7,537
Amortisation of deferred EEERER A
development costs 7 2,766 1,001
Loss on disposal of fixed assets, net HEBREEEFESE 7 159 893
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAREE 7 119,363 -
Finance costs & B AR 9 1,294 2,224
Operating loss before RTLEELELED
Working capital changes AL EE (414) (67,150)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERL /(8 m) (14,619) 2,899
Decrease in accounts and bills receivable ENEEREER D 26,557 703
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits BENRE Re R
and other receivables H fth FE UK
wb (Em) (8,703) 5,240
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and ENBRERRE
bills payables #n/ CRd) (41,468) 34,987
Increase in accrued liabilities and EFBER
other payables Hfh B A 538 N 8,547 10,697
Cash used in operations EBFAZER S (30,100) (12,624)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BBz BBENER 727 191
Overseas profits taxes paid BRBINTER (667) (63)
Interest paid ERFIE (1,190) (2,124)
Interest element on finance lease MEMERS
rental payments ZFEHBH (104) (100)
Net cash outflow from operating activities: KEEBSIRZ
Bemtgam:
Continuing operations BELEER (1,765) (33,820)
Discontinued operations BRIEER (29,569) 19,100
Total @t (31,334) (14,720)




HK$'000
TET

HK$'000
THET
(Restated)
(E3))

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Additions to deferred development costs
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Net cash outflow from disposal
of subsidiaries
Payment for acquisition consideration
payable in prior year
Increase in pledged time deposits

Interest received

Net cash outflow from

investing activities:

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Total

RETHIIB2RAERE
FEETEE
HEETEEMGNE
R R AL M 14
Uy B T /B8 A 7 30(d)
HENE QRS 30(e)

ZHReRLFR
M EREAKERE 31()0)

[REER Eh Rl
BHAE

REEFSIMEZ
REmbFE:

FREGEEYR
BRIEET

@t

(14,023)
(22,500)

(36,523)




I Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEBERER

Year ended 31 December 2002 HE=-ZZTZET=_F+=-_A=+—"HLEFE

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Jiog=3 FET FET
(Restated)
(E3))
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEESI R
BeRE
New bank loans MILRITER - 24,419
Repayment of bank loans ERERTER (8,117) -
Proceeds from issue of share capital BIIRAMBRE 27(e) 31,800 -
Share issue expenses B ETHRZ 27(e) (1,648) -
Payment for repurchase of shares BB R FB 27(e) (361) -
Dividends paid BERERE - (1,810)
Advances to an investee company FF—BHERE
NEZ BT 17 (4,110) (8,329)
Advance from a minority shareholder —HLERR
Rt zBR 2,500 7,005
Additional minority shareholders’ DHRER
investments in subsidiaries MEARZEIMEE - 503
Capital element of finance lease BEMREMAS
rental payments ZERE D (319) (1,275)
Net cash inflow from financing activities: MEFYSIRCASMAFE:
Continuing operations SEEEET 16,162 20,513
Discontinued operations BERIEER 3,583 -
Total at 19,745 20,513
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS WO RE (37,422) (30,730)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ FfZH&RRESEY 99,852 130,569
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SN B o
a2 Sex (16) 13
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEER
AT END OF YEAR ReZEY 62,414 99,852
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBRELEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEERZ oM
Cash and bank balances Re RBTES 21 26,653 97,109
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity EUEE RETZMAETE=EA
of less than three months when acquired ZEEREHFER 21 33,577 -
Bank overdrafts, secured BRMETEX 24 (592) -
Time deposits with original maturity ERRITEEEHEERRN
of less than three months when acquired, REKRTIHETE
pledged as security for bank overdraft facilities “EAZEHER 21 2,776 2,743
62,414 99,852
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Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt F#ET FHEIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 13 1,461 1,264
Interests in subsidiaries R E AR Z S 15 148,019 217,398
149,480 218,662
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ERRIE RE R
other receivables E i B WK 1,144 7,927
Due from an investee company Y —EHIEE
NA) 2B 17 8,906 -
Pledged time deposits A E BFR 21 15,030 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEEEYD 21 341 20,515
25,421 28,442
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables JE =T 8 & & E e T 3K 23 1,599 691
Current portion of finance lease payables B &7 & f& (5018
2 BNERER 25 526 270
2,125 961
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 23,296 27,481
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHABERARBERE 172,776 246,143
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Finance lease payables REETRE R RE 25 720 396
172,056 245,747
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR#E
Issued capital B BT 27 50,121 36,200
Reserves #EE 29 121,935 209,547
172,056 245,747

Chan Tze Ngon, Ron
®¥ &2
Director

EF

Tang Kin Hung

BB 42 3t
Director

EF
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

During the year, the Group was involved in the distribution
of computer hardware and software products and the
provision of computer technology services. The provision of
broadband Internet equipment, network security software and
business software systems was discontinued during the year,
following the disposal of DMX Technologies Group Limited
and its subsidiaries. Further details of the discontinued

operations are included in note 4 to the financial statements.

Other than the foregoing, there were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the

year.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE

The following new and revised Hong Kong Statements of

Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs") are effective for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements:

e SSAP 1 (Revised) "Presentation of financial
statements”

e SSAP 11 (Revised)

e SSAP 15 (Revised)

“Foreign currency translation”
“Cash flow statements”
e SSAP 33 “Discontinuing operations”

e SSAP 34 “Employee benefits”

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement and
disclosure practices. The major effects on the Group's
accounting policies and on the amounts disclosed in these
financial statements of adopting these SSAPs are summarised

as follows:

DREEHR

RER REBYEEMEMFETHTER
DHEREERBEMRB 2 EH - AR E
# 1 % DMX Technologies Group Limited
REMBAGE REARIER®ERE
AR E BRRTEREER RS-
ERIEEB 2 E - HBEHR M ERERW
4.

B Lo REEZ FEEBUEERF
W EEREE -

A REEITERESTEBER

B8/
24

ERERNFEFBHRRE ERRAAT
Hal BT 2 BER G ERER (T

#8]) -

o ERERNER(BET)  [HBERIZ2ED

£
o BHEMNENR (BB EREZ]
o EEEMNESE (BEF)  [RERER]
o BHEMENE [REEEXH]
o BEEREME [EE#EM]

ZE G ERIFTAMEI 2 St st E R B
Bl RN ESFENHREE ST K
BEMBEHERAEEER T2 EMM
mr:
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE (continued)

SSAP 1 prescribes the basis for the presentation of financial
statements and sets out guidelines for their structure and
minimum requirements for the content thereof. The principal
impact of the revision to this SSAP is that a consolidated
statement of changes in equity is now presented on page 43
of the financial statements in place of the consolidated
statement of recognised gains and losses that was previously

required and in place of the Group's reserves note.

SSAP 11 prescribes the basis for the translation of foreign
currency transactions and financial statements. The principal
impact of the revision of this SSAP on the consolidated
financial statements is that the profit and loss accounts of
overseas subsidiaries are now translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the year,
whereas previously they were translated at the exchange rates
at the balance sheet date. The adoption of the revised SSAP
11 has had no material effect on the financial statements.
Further details of this change that has resulted from the
revised SSAP are included in the accounting policy for “Foreign

currencies” in note 3 to the financial statements.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE (continued)

SSAP 15 prescribes the revised format for the cash flow
statement. The principal impact of the revision of this SSAP
is that the consolidated cash flow statement now presents
cash flows under three headings, cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities, rather than the five headings
previously required. In addition, cash flows from overseas
subsidiaries arising during the year are now translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions, or at an approximation thereto, whereas
previously they were translated at the exchange rates at the
balance sheet date, and the definition of cash equivalents
for the purpose of the cash flow statement has been revised.
Further details of these changes and the prior year
adjustments that have resulted from them are included in the
accounting policies for “Cash and cash equivalents” and
“Foreign currencies” in notes 3 and 30(a) to the financial

statements.

SSAP 33 replaces the existing disclosure requirements for
discontinuing operations, which were previously included in
SSAP 2. SSAP 33 defines a discontinuing operation and
prescribes when an enterprise should commence including
discontinuing operation disclosures in its financial statements
and the disclosures required. The principal impact of this
SSAP is that more extensive disclosures concerning the Group'’s
discontinuing operations are now included in note 4 to the

financial statements.

HARKETERSHEKER
ZRE ()
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE (continued)

SSAP 34 prescribes the recognition and measurement criteria
to apply to employee benefits, together with the required
disclosures in respect thereof. The adoption of this SSAP has
resulted in no change to the previously adopted accounting
treatments for employee benefits. In addition, disclosures are
now required in respect of the Company’s share option
scheme, as detailed in note 28 to the financial statements.
These share option scheme disclosures are similar to the Rules
Governing Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) disclosures previously
included in the Report of the Directors, which are now
required to be included in the notes to the financial statements

as a consequence of the adoption of this SSAP.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practice,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the periodic remeasurement of certain

fixed assets, as further explained below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2002. The results of the subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are consolidated from
or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal,
respectively. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the Company’s

subsidiaries.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit
and loss account to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated

at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's
share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

acquired as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised on the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of a maximum

period of 10 years.

SSAP 30 “Business combinations” was adopted as at 1 January
2001. Prior to that date, goodwill arising on acquisitions was
eliminated against consolidated reserves in the year of
acquisition. On the adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied
the transitional provision of SSAP 30 that permitted such
goodwill to remain eliminated against consolidated reserves.
Goodwill on acquisitions subsequent to 1 January 2001 is
accounted for in accordance with the SSAP 30 goodwill

accounting policy above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

On disposal of subsidiaries, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of
disposal, including the attributable amount of goodwill which
remains unamortised and any relevant reserves, as appropriate.
Any attributable goodwill previously eliminated against
consolidated reserves at the time of acquisition is written
back and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on

disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill, including goodwill remaining
eliminated against consolidated reserves, is reviewed annually
and written down for impairment when it is considered
necessary. A previously recognised impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss was caused
by a specific external event of an exceptional nature that
was not expected to recur, and subsequent external events

have occurred which have reversed the effect of that event.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence. Related parties may be

individuals or corporate entities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after fixed assets have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit
and loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed
asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of

that asset.

Changes in the values of fixed assets are dealt with as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of
this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit
and loss account. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the profit and loss account to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits

as a movement in reserves.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each asset over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:
Medium term leasehold land Over the remaining lease terms
Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 3'/3% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures 33'3%

and equipment

Motor vehicles 33'3%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset
recognised in the profit and loss account is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of

the relevant asset.

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases are included in fixed assets and are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to the profit and loss account so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the profit
and loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
the operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account

on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Long term investments

Long term investments in listed and unlisted equity securities,
intended to be held on a continuing strategic or long-term
basis, are stated at cost less any impairment losses, on an

individual investment basis.

When a decline in the fair value of a security below its carrying
amount has occurred, unless there is evidence that the decline
is temporary, the carrying amount of the security is reduced
to its fair value, as estimated by the directors. The amount of
the impairment is charged to the profit and loss account for
the period in which it arises. When the circumstances and
events which led to the impairment in value cease to exist
and there is persuasive evidence that the new circumstances
and events will persist for the foreseeable future, the amount
of the impairment previously charged is credited to the profit
and loss account to the extent of the amount previously

charged.

The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
such securities are credited or charged to the profit and loss

account in the period in which they arise.

FESTHERE (&)

NEEBRARE 2 BN W KRR
HARBAZHE ADIRREME-EX
SERBEA AREBEEEHEEZEEAE
SREOFHRUNEREFABRR 5
SERAEA AIREHEZENESZ
HOFHUEREZAEBRERTME-

REBRE

RHEERANESERRBARM/TEZ
EHRFLETRAEZESKRE BEAER
ERBEBRAERNREEEALK.

EBFNTEEREERE@DE BRIEE
FRERREBERE FHFEEERSH
REEEMMAEF2ATEE MR EEE
REFHHEEBEERNBR SFBURAEAZ
ERAREHEIREE BAREEEE
MERREHFERAITER RIS E A
SR E KR 2 8 (B 8RR 1% 55 AT Bk 2 BUER
AR ABRE.

ZEBHFATEBEZHEE 2 WELERE
REEHREFABaXRIBBERNG-



Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBEAER QT

I \otes to Financial Statements
Bf % 3R & M &=

31

December 2002 —_ZEZET -+ _-fF=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether
there is any indication of impairment of any asset, or whether
there is any indication that an impairment loss previously
recognised for an asset in prior years may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use

and its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, when the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the
profit and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the profit and loss account

as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the projects are clearly
defined; the expenditure is separately identifiable and can be
measured reliably; there is reasonable certainty that the
projects are technically feasible; and the products have
commercial value. Product development expenditure which

does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses and are
amortised using the straight-line basis over the commercial
lives of the underlying products not exceeding three years,
commencing from the date when the products are available

for use.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to

completion and disposal.

Accounts receivable

The payment terms granted by the Group vary from project
to project and may include cash on delivery, advance payment
and credit of 30 to 90 days from different stages of the
projects. Trade receivables are recognised and carried at
original invoiced amount less provisions for doubtful debts
which are recorded when collection of the amounts is no

longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Prior to the adoption of the revised SSAP 15 during the year,
as explained in note 2 to the financial statements, cash
equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement also
included advances from banks repayable within three months
from the date of the advance, in addition to bank overdrafts.
The change in definition has resulted in a prior year
adjustment relating to trust receipt loans, further details of

which are included in note 30(a) to the financial statements.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including

term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can

be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in

finance costs in the profit and loss account.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
significant timing differences to the extent it is probable that
the liability will crystallise in the foreseeable future. A deferred
tax asset is not recognised until its realisation is assured

beyond reasonable doubt.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as
at the balance sheet date is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the following
year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the

year by the employees and carried forward.

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 34 during the year, as explained
in note 2 to the financial statements, the Group did not
accrue for paid annual leave carried forward at the balance
sheet date. This change in accounting policy has had no

material effect on the financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible
for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in the event of the termination of their
employment. The Group is liable to make such payments in
the event that such a termination of employment meets the
circumstances specified in the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance.

A contingent liability is disclosed in respect of possible future
long service payments to employees, as a number of current
employees have achieved the required number of years of
service to the Group up to the balance sheet date, in order
to be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance if their employment is terminated in
the circumstances specified. A provision has not been
recognised in respect of such possible payments, as it is not
considered probable that the situation will result in a material

future outflow of resources from the Group.

Share options scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The
financial impact of share options granted under the share
option scheme is not recorded in the Company’s or the
Group’s balance sheet until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recorded in the profit and loss
account or balance sheet for their cost. Upon the exercise of
share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the
Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of
the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the
Company in the share premium account. Options which are
cancelled prior to their exercise date, or which lapse, are

deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
participating employees’ relevant income and are charged to
the profit and loss account as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed

into the Scheme.

The Group has joined a mandatory central pension scheme
operated by the PRC government for its PRC employees, the
assets of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions made are based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries and are charged to the profit and loss
account as they become payable, in accordance with the
rules of the scheme. The employer contributions vest fully

once they are made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over

the goods sold;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) from the rendering of services, including fixed price
service contracts, based on the stage of completion
of the transaction, provided that this and the costs
incurred, as well as the estimated costs to completion
can be measured reliably. The stage of completion of
a transaction associated with the rendering of such
services is established by reference to the costs
incurred to date as compared to the total costs to be

incurred under the transaction;

(o) maintenance income, on a time proportion basis over

the period of the contract;

(d) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and the

effective interest rate applicable; and

(e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the capital and
reserves section of the balance sheet, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and

declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they

are proposed and declared.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated at the applicable exchange
rates ruling at that date. Exchange differences are dealt with

in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the
net investment method. The profit and loss accounts of
overseas subsidiaries are translated to Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year, and their
balance sheets are translated to Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
translation differences are included in the exchange fluctuation

reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated to Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.

Prior to the adoption of the revised SSAPs 11 and 15 during
the year, as explained in note 2 to the financial statements,
the profit and loss accounts and the cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries were translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The adoption of
the revised SSAP 11 has had no material effect on the financial
statements, while the adoption of the revised SSAP 15 has
resulted in changes to the layout of the consolidated cash
flow statement, but has had no material effect on the amounts

previously reported in prior years.
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 4.

During the year, the Group discontinued its business involving
the provision of broadband Internet equipment, network
security software and business software systems, following
the disposal of DMX Technologies Group Limited (“"DMX")
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “DMX Group”). The DMX
Group was consolidated by the Group until the date of its
disposal, at which time the assets and liabilities of the DMX

Group were transferred to the loss on disposal of the

discontinued operations, which comprised the following:

o4
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BRIEXER

FR - AEEE L EDMX Technologies
Group Limited ([DMX] ) R E M@ 2~ 7] (£
T IDMXEE ) 1% 42 - IR T 48 5 Bk 4
BE BRRLBGREERGRAES-
DMXEEZLE B HIE 2 RBGE AR
EEZEERN MODMXEBZEER AR
ERZHEERIEEBEBEENT:

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Consideration received/receivable HEHEDMXEB BB Z
in relation to the disposal of the KRB (M 5E20%30(e))
DMX Group (notes 20 and 30(e)) 50,000 -
Less: Net assets of the DMX Group  J&f : DMXEE B & & ¥ (& (68,907) -
Legal and professional expenses  HEE4SZ AELEXEA
incurred on disposal (1,025) -
Goodwill S (99,377) -
Loss on disposal of the DMX Group H&DMX&E B 18 (119,309) -

Note:  Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 3 October
2002 (the "Agreement”), the Group disposed of all of its
equity interest in (equivalent to 61% of the issued ordinary
shares of) DMX to seven purchasers of which two were the
then minority shareholders of DMX, for a consideration of

HK$50 million.

Kt WREAMA-_ZTT-_F+A=-AZES
e (Mgl AEEREEEHFLE
HADMXZ B A B (18 & I DMXE
TEmAR61%) X {8 /550,000,000
T MERWEE S E R ADMXD #HAR

°

bl



I \otes to Financial Statements
Bf % 3R & M &=

31

December 2002 —_ZEZET -+ _-fF=+—H

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

The effective date of discontinuance of the discontinued
operations was 15 October 2002. The turnover and other
income generated from the discontinued operations were
HK$155,084,000 and HK$627,000 respectively (2001:
HK$127,703,000 and HK$799,000). The operating profit
before tax arising from the discontinued operations was
HK$19,446,000 (2001: HK$4,855,000), which included costs
of inventories sold of HK$111,011,000 (2001:
HK$95,122,000), finance costs of HK$306,000 (2001:
216,000) and operating expenses of HK$25,254,000 (2001:
HK$34,913,000).

On 6 September 2002, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) rejected the application of
the Group in respect of compliance with Rule 8.05 of the
Listing Rules in relation to the proposed spin-off of the DMX
Group. The directors expected that, if the DMX Group did
not obtain a listing and remained a subsidiary of the Group,
both the DMX Group and the Group would suffer considerably
because of (i) the lack of additional funding to support the
operation and growth of the DMX Group; and (ii) the loss of
qualified staff based on the directors’ understanding from
the management of the DMX Group. The directors considered
that it was the best interests of the Group to dispose of the
DMX Group, although this resulted in the Group incurring a
loss on the disposal of HK$119 million.

BRIEER (@

FULEERIEEBZEASBRA-_TT-F
TA+ER EXABRILER B
K E AU A 5 Bl A& 155,084,000/ 7T &
627,000/ 7T (ZZ & —4: 127,703,000/
T 799,000/ L) cEAEBEKRIEEHZ
W Bt A AS 45 0 ) 519,446,000 7T (= F
T —4%:4,8550008 ) BRECELERFE
B A 111,011,000 8 (Z 2 & — &
95,122,000 7T) * @ & A 7~ 306,0007%8 7T
(ZZZ—4:216,0008 1) RE & &
25,254,000 7t (ZZZ—4 :34,913,000
BT e

RZEEZFAAXNB BBHAXZH
ERAF ([Bpr]) BBAKEMER
DMXEB S EhmiziR - MR B 58.05
RIRH 2 BB -EETEH MDMXE B K48
LETmEE AR EE 2B QR DMXE
ERAEEHEZINEAZE REA ()
BRZFENESTIEODMXEBLARER:
RV EEADMXEEEREERTAERES
Thk-Z2E2RA BEAEERLEESE
fE5#8119,000,000% 7T« tH EDMXEE A
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

Under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, the Agreement
constituted a disclosable transaction for the Company. Further
details of the Agreement set out in an announcement of the
Company dated 8 October 2002 and a circular of the
Company dated 29 October 2002.

Due to the disposal of the DMX Group, the turnover and the
loss from operating activities in respect of the Group’s business
of the provision of broadband Internet equipment, network
security software and business software systems for the year,
together with the corresponding amounts for the prior period,
are classified and disclosed under discontinued operations in

accordance with SSAP 33.

The carrying amounts of the total assets and liabilities relating

to the discontinued operations at 31 December were as

follows:

BRIEER (@

BIEETRAFE14E - BERERARAZ
ATHERS - FHHEIE—FTFBH
RARBD RN _ZZ_F+ANRARZ
ZE_FTAT B ZAMREK-

BAREEDMXER B IE & EA E 335
FRNEBAEERETHOBERE &
BREEMHREERHRRER 2 E ¥R
REEEB 2 EBU RN BE M2 HEH
HEREREEBEDERKE

R+ZA=+—HB BERILEBZREE
LEa@EREENRT:

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Total assets BERE - 128,033
Total liabilities BEREAE - (64,402)
Net assets EEFE - 63,631
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by

geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and
the products and services they provide. Each of the Group's
business segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business
segments. Summary details of the business segments are as

follows:

(a) the banking and finance systems integration services
segment engages in the provision of systems
integration, software development, engineering,
maintenance and professional outsourcing services
customised for banking and finance,

telecommunications and public sector clients;

(b) the software solutions for banks and public sector
segment concentrates on the banking, e-commerce
and public sectors with a business focus on e-business

operations and online marketplaces; and

(c) the broadband Internet equipments, network security
software and business software systems segment
specialised in Internet Protocol networking, Internet
security and web-based television solutions. The
activities of this segment were discontinued during

the year (note 4).

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based

on the location of the assets.
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REZRBZEEOHER AEER %
B ab R R — e L fm & IR 75 # SR A
EBEM EAHARREREEMER
DEBAR-EH A2 BB LT

(a) RITERESBERBEKRA D B
RERHRGER HKMEBERE T
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at
the then prevailing market prices.

(a)

Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for
the Group’s business segments.

Group

Continuing operations

RELERH

68

PEER (/)
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DRz ENHERBADRERZTES
ERBETE= D ZHEEET-

(@)  EB DA

REBEBH B2 WA K (6
B RETER BERNZ AR

SR T &
REH

Discontinued operations
BRLER

Banking and
finance systems

Software solutions

for banks and
the public sector

Broadband Internet
equipment, network
security software
and business
software systems

integration services  BTRAAZH ERERERRE
BARERER RAUBEZz&H BRAZUHR Eliminations Consolidated
ERAE BRAR BERHEZS bk &4
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér  ThEr  FEr  FEr  TEr  TEr  TEr FEr FEr TEx
Seqment revenue: AHYA:
Sales to external AABEF 84,269 325517 104515 123,167 155,084 127,703 - - 3433868 576,387
customers fEtiz &
Intersegment sales AHEHE - 9 1,095 1437 - 6388 (1,095) (7,924) - -
Interest income IELON 79 964 449 4 a0 583 - - 1667 1,989
Other income A 261 2,014 - 183 205 216 - - 466 2,413
Total ok 85,326 328594 106,059 125229 155,711 134,890 (1,095)  (7,924) 346,001 580,789
Segment results EES (11,266) (37,413)  (2,259) (11,592) 19,446 4,855 - - 5921 (44,150)
Unallocated interest AAEFEHA
income 443 820
Unallocated gains AABUE 583 243
Unallocated expenses ~ RAEHT (21,524)  (39,012)
Loss on disposal of HEBALEK
discontinued operations &1 (119,309) (119,309) -
Loss from operating ~ BEXEEE
activities (133,886) (82,099)
Finance costs REMK (1294)  (2.204)
Loss before tax BE RS (135,180)  (84,323)
Tax it (4,0865)  (333)
Loss before minority K HEKR
interests ERiER (139,45)  (84,656)
Minority interests PERF ER (8,624)  (4,152)
Net loss from ordinary ~ RREHAE
activties FBEEE
attributable to
shareholders (147,869) (88,808)
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5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. ZEE®Mm
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) ¥ (E)
Group EY S
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RERERR BALER

Broadband Internet
equipment, network

Banking and
finance systems

Software solutions
for banks and
the public sector

security software
and business
software systems

integration services ~ BTRABEH ERERERE
BAREHZALR REUBRz&H BERZUMR Eliminations Consolidated
ERRH BARE EEL LTS ik Ge
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK]$’000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  FTér TEr  FAr  TExr  FhAr  TEr FEr TEr FAn
Segment assets 2HEE 243,844 195220 90,816 90,231 - 195873 (120,512) (24,604) 214,148 456,720
Unallocated assets: i%@ﬂﬁ?ﬁ
Long term investment KK E 51,081 51,081
Others i 57,15 29,852
Bank overdrafts included 2 ASBEE
in segment assets LRTER 592 - - - - - - - 592 -
Total assets BEE 323,036 537,653
Segment liabilities PHaE 171,172 67,627 52,287 66,498 - 70,949 (120512) (24,604) 102,947 180,470
Unallocated liabilities ~ ®AEEE 41,046 59,364
Bank overdrafts included 2 AR BEE
in segment assets LBEX 592 - - - - - - - 592 -
Total liabilities gk 144,585 239,834
Other segment Hhpdas:
information:
Cash and bank BiARHEE
balances included LREREH
in segment assets e 45866 60309 14,023 13,033 - 32% - - 59,889 76,598
Pledged time B ANPEE
deposits included LEEARS
in segment assets B3 2,913 3036 12,481 12,144 - 16,756 - - 1539 31936
Depreciation and hEREH
amortisation (4661) (3,779)  (3,003) (2.587) (7,333) (8,362) - - (14997) (14,728)
Unallocated amounts AP E4E (1.063)  (2,137)
(16,060)  (16,865)
Provision for doubtful ~ REEE
debts (2992) (23,697) (24)  (6,018) - (4.165) - - (3,016) (33,880)
Other non-cash EpFEREMA/
income/(expenses) (R%) (99)  (236) 18 (598) (8) - - - (89)  (834)
Unallocated amounts AP E4SE (70) (59)
(159) (893)
Capital expenditure EREY 1,032 2,528 558 2,643 863 5,509 - - 2,453 10,680
Unallocated amounts AR £ 1332 14
3,785 10,694
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5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2E&ES®
(b) Geographical segments (b) i & 5 =B
The following tables present revenue and certain asset REEMWEI B 2WARETEE
and expenditure information for the Group's B2 BERFIR TR
geographical segments.
Group KEE
Asia Pacific
Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC  other than the PRC Eliminations Consolidated
& HEHMEE  EABE (PERD) i | &a

2002 2001 2002 2001

2002

2001 2002

2001 2002 2001

CEECE CRT-ECEECEC35-FCSECFCTT-FCEECECTT-ECEECEC-R5-F

HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tér  Fér  TEr  FEr TEr  FEr  TEr  FEr  TEn  FEn
Segment revenue: AU
Sales to external mPEP
customers [FHZHE 12838 40960 307,094 521,809 23936 13,618 - - 343868 576,387
Intersegment sales PHEHE - 6760 - 99 - 709 - (1,568) - -
12,838 47,720 307,094 521,908 23936 14327 - (7,568) 343,868 576,387
Other segment Hhpdeas:
information:
Segment assets ABEE 644,214 244824 194241 323,623 - 18170 (567,092) (100,045) 271363 486,572
Unallocated amounts:  #AE2%E:
Long term investment R HZE 51,081 51,081
Bank overdrafts BHAANDEE
included in LBTEY
segment assets 592 - - - - - - - 592 -
323,036 537,653
Cash and bank balances B AL BEE
included in segment  ZEE R
assets Fiksh 3,460 38047 56,770 59,033 - 29 - - 60,230 97,109
Pledged time deposits 2 A BEE
included in segment 2 EEBTH
assets B 19884 21829 10541 10,107 - - - - 30425 31,93
Capital expenditure BERRX 2386 455 1399 5003 - 116 - - 3785 10,694
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6. TURNOVER AND INCOME 6. EXHERWHE
Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, EXTEEEERCEEFE (BENKRE
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, and the BERESIHN) BRHRE 2 EEFE
value of services rendered. All significant intra-Group AEBEBTEAABZ —YIERRZER
transactions have been eliminated on consolidation. RAEREBERIEKE-
An analysis of turnover and income is as follows: EEEREESNOT:

Group
KEE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Continuing operations: R s T
Sale of goods HEE M 111,016 409,712
Provision of computer RHE
technology services By AR % 77,768 38,972
188,784 448,684
Discontinued operations: R
Sale of goods HEEm 155,082 126,476
Provision of computer RHE
technology services B AR 7 2 1,227
155,084 127,703
Total turnover EEEE 343,868 576,387
Interest income B WA 2,110 2,809
Gross rental income HeBRKA 533 771
Exchange gains, net PE 5 W 5 58 - 1,635
Sundry income HEUA 516 250
Other income H A A 3,159 5,465
347,027 581,852
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LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7.

The Group's loss from operating activities is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

RERXBoER

Annual Report 2002 4 ¥

AEBILEEB 2 BREMB, (GEA)

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ok=3 F&T FHET
Costs of inventories sold and EHETFERATIEHE
services provided AR 7% 2 Bk A 261,433 485,653
Depreciation e 13 7,120 8,327
Amortisation of goodwill SR 3 16 6,174 7,537
Provision for doubtful debts REREME 3,016 33,880
Research and development costs: W 9e K A B B AN -
Amortisation of deferred BSHIEE AR
development costs 14 2,766 1,001
Minimum lease payments THEREFEEHEE
under operating leases Z&IEREE
in respect of land and buildings 5,846 7,371
Auditors’ remuneration 1% E RN B & 948 918
Staff costs, excluding directors’ BIRA (TeE
remuneration (note 8): EEME) (A:28) :
Salaries e 54,204 66,567
Pension scheme contributions RIKRSETEIHER 3,618 792
Mandatory provident fund dmHlEAESEHK
contributions 825 825
58,647 68,184
Exchange losses/(gains), net &N EE S (W) T8 400 (1,635)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRREIE 119,363 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets, net HEETEEEEIBFEE 159 893
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7.

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued)

The cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2002
include HK$19,350,000 (2001: HK$19,032,000), relating to
direct staff costs and the amortisation of deferred
development costs, which are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these
types of expenses for the year.

The amortisation of goodwill and provision for doubtful debts
for the year are included in “Other operating expenses” on
the face of the consolidated profit and loss account.

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of the Company’s directors disclosed

REEKZER (5)

HE—Z2 -+ -_A=+—RHItEE>
$HE AR B B4 B B B B TR R R G
Rk AN 45 FH 8 2 19,350,000/ T (=&
T —4:19,032,0008 ) ' SHE B D
FANEMBEAFES A 2B
o

AEEHEHERARRFECHT AGERE
sRZEMREER]F-

EEMERTEBRSFEE

R BT AR A R A N ARG S 16115 B

pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong BYARRIEEMEMT:
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
Group
TEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees: we
Executive directors WITES - -
Non-executive directors FERITES 200 200
Independent non-executive BAUERITESE
directors 400 400
600 600
Other emoluments of BITES AN
executive directors:
Basic salaries, other allowances BEARFHe HMEMEEMF =
and benefits in kind 6,108 7,844
Mandatory provident fund BHIMEATESHK
contributions 73 56
6,181 7,900
6,781 8,500
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE 8.
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

Annual Report 2002 £ %§

EEMEROEBREFHES (@)

He@BR TH@EEZEEASMNT:

Number of directors

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

Z T £ 1,000,0007% 7T

1,000,001% 7T & 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7T £2,000,000/% 7T
2,500,001 7T % 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001 JT Z 3,500,000/% 7T

The five highest paid employees included three (2001: four)

directors during the year, details of whose remuneration are

set out above.

Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2001: one)

non-director, highest paid employees are as follows:

RERN BEE=H

BEEAH
6 4
- 1
1 2
1 —
- 1
8 8

REBE=%2(Z2F

—FNR)EE REZHEHBER L

o

ERHEETHT

ME(ZET—F: —

B)FEZREZMEHBDOT:

HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FEIT
Basic salaries, other allowances EXFe EMEMREYH R
and benefits in kind 1,740 1,140
Mandatory provident fund EHEATESER
contributions 12 13
1,752 1,153

75
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The remuneration of each of the non-director, highest paid
employees for the year ended 31 December 2002 fell within
the Nil to HK$1,000,000 band.

During the year, aggregate of 11,400,000 and 1,000,000
share options with an exercise price of HK$0.431 per share
were granted to three executive directors and the two non-
director, highest paid employees, respectively, in respect of
their services to the Group, further details of which are set
out in note 28 to the financial statements. No value in respect
of the share options granted during the year has been charged

to the consolidated profit and loss account.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2001:
Nil). During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors or the non-director, highest paid employees
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office (2001: Nil).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
had no significant obligations for long service payments to
its employees pursuant to the requirements under the
Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, at 31 December 2002.

EEMEROERESHREE (B)

BIE—Z2ZE_F+-_A-+—-HLFE
EHEFERFEEZMENTTATE
1,000,000/ 7T °

FRN RBERSURNEE RS =280
EERMEIEETERTREDER
11,400,00013 % 1,000,00015 1T {£ & & T
0.4318 7T 2 B IR - 5 15 SR B 75 3R R BT
H28 - FAEKNEREBETESR
EHEERTMEKe

FAYEIIEMESHERABHRE
e 228 (Z2Z—F:\) AEER
FAYBAESIIFESTRRFTRERESN
W EREBENARNEERR AR
SERZER MERRERBZHE (=
TE—FE)-

ARREEERR KEBEBTEEDFESTE
BREGENZHRE AEER-_FT_F+
“A=t-RYHEREYEBAZ KM
BEEE-



FINANCE COSTS

HK3$'000
THET

HK3$'000
T

Interest on trust receipt loans and

bank overdrafts wholly

repayable within five years

Interest on finance leases

ERAFAEHEEREL
ERBIEERRRT
B

BEMREFE

HK3$'000
TET

HK3$'000
TET

Current:
Hong Kong
Elsewhere

Overprovision in prior year

Deferred tax — note 26

Tax charge for the year

REE:

N

H 3 [
LFEEBERE

EIE T IR — [T 7226

REFHIAL M
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10.

1.

TAX (continued)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16%
(2001: 16%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof. Tax recoverable represents provisional tax paid in

excess of the estimated tax liability of the Group.

IRELEBBESRMARAR ("REBB
of the Company established in the PRC,

, a subsidiary
is exempted from
PRC corporate income tax for three years starting from the
year ended 31 December 2001, and thereafter is eligible for
a 50% relief from income tax for the following three years
under the Income Tax Law of the PRC. The standard PRC
corporate income tax rate applicable to 5¢# £13& is 15%. As
a result of the exemptions, 5 ¥ £3® is exempted from the
paying of corporate income tax for the year ended 31
December 2001 and the years ending 31 December 2002
and 2003, and will be subject to corporate income tax at the
rate of 7.5% for the three years ending 31 December 2004,

2005 and 2006.

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2002 was
HK$151,563,000 (2001: HK$105,493,000).

10.

11.

BIE (8)

ERMNERIIBEFANERTEES Z A
ERBENERE16% (ZFF —F:
16%) 1 H B o 5 E o 3t [ BT R AR B AR 0
w2 HIETDRBERNEEREEBEREN
&2 RERBE W 2 RITAD BB RIE
I 5t & - AT U @ 75 38 B A8 28 AN &2 [ 5 A5
BRBEZEXNEHRE.

REBEPBEMEBOED XA ERBEKZ
ZMWBARREEEBEERMERA
A([EERB]) BBE_TT—F+_H
=T RALFEEA=ZFREREBNF
BOEXMEH ER=FNHAIEZ®R—F
PrER-SEBCRERZBERBEDEMN

BRR15% < RIBILEE R SRR E
ETE—F+A=+—HLEFEMH
z T _FER_TE=F+-_F=+—
HESFEHERRANTECERSEH K
EREBEE_TTNF —TTRAFRT
TRFE+_A=+—RAIL=EFFAEEZ

7 5% BN XS

RREGBEXEK ZFER

RAAREZE-TT_F+-_A=1+—H
HFEEZHBREINEEREEEATE
1§ 2 FE18/4151,563,0008 T (Z T T —
:105,493,000% L) °
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12.

December 2002 —_ZEZET -+ _-fF=+—H

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the net
loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for
the year of HK$147,869,000 (2001: HK$88,808,000) and the
weighted average of 445,291,710 (2001: 362,000,000)

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share amounts for the years ended 31
December 2002 and 2001 have not been disclosed as the
share options outstanding during these years had an anti-

dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for these years.

The effects of the Company’s shares issuable for the
settlement of the additional consideration for the acquisitions
of certain subsidiaries, as further detailed in notes 31(a)(ii)
and (iii) to the financial statements have not been included
in the computation of diluted loss per share as the shares to
be so issued would be fairly priced and are assumed to be

neither dilutive nor anti-dilutive.

12.
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Annual Report 2002 % #§

BRER

BRERNBEEDBEAFERREERE
¥ %2 #E518147,869,0008 0 (Z2ZE —
4 88,808,000/ 7T ) B F B 81T L A%
2 INFEF 9 445,291,710/ (Z 2 ZT —
4 :362,000,0008%) 5t & -

BHRNFRRARITEZBREESRENE
BEREBRE BBE_TT K=
FEE_FT A=+ -RUEFEZERE
SBREBIRIERE-

A E SRS B ER I ST AR
BETHEBAR Z@IMEM A FHITH
7 2 528 (IR B 75 3R B E 31 (a)(i) B Giii) BT
i) HAZREERBTEIT RN ZE
R AT I ARR AL EE R R EER
JE o
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13. FIXED ASSETS 13. BEEEE
Group rE
Medium term
leasehold land Furniture,
and building Leasehold  fixtures and
in Hong Kong improvements equipment Motor
REBZHH HE BR-#E vehicles Total
HETHRET LES3 EL RE wm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET Fi#T
Cost or valuation: RAERGE:
At beginning of year REA 650 5,677 28,836 3,219 38,382
Additions NE - 250 2,253 1,282 3,785
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB A - (1,343) (4,892) - (6,235)
Disposals/write-off HE /M - (584) (2,600) - (3,184)
At 31 December 2002 RZTTZHF
+-A=+—-H 650 4,000 23,597 4,501 32,748
Accumulated depreciation: ZEME:
At beginning of year REA 89 3,427 15,680 2,608 21,804
Provided during the year FREE 33 811 5,740 536 7,120
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKBLQA - (467) (1,685) - (2,152)
Disposals/write-off HE /M - (420) (1,284) - (1,704)
At 31 December 2002 RZTTZHF
+-A=+—-H 122 3,351 18,451 3,144 25,068
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2002 NZTE_F
+-A=+—-H 528 649 5,146 1,357 7,680
At 31 December 2001 RZTT—%F
+ZA=+-H 561 2,250 13,156 611 16,578
Analysis of cost or valuation: A AESBED T
At cost BRAE - 4,000 23,597 4,501 32,098
At 30 April 1999 R=NANNE
valuation mA=+HMGEE 650 - - - 650
650 4,000 23,597 4,501 32,748
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13.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13. BEEE (&)
Company b
Furniture,

fixtures and

Leasehold equipment Motor
improvements RR-£BE vehicles Total
HEWEEE e AE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE&T FET FET
Cost: N EE
At beginning of year RE A 1,869 876 1,350 4,095
Additions nE 126 182 1,026 1,334
Disposals ik (368) (35) - (403)
At 31 December 2002 RZBE_F
+ZA=+—H 1,627 1,023 2,376 5,026
Accumulated depreciation:  ZFEIFE:
At beginning of year RE A 1,402 454 975 2,831
Provided during the year FANEE 234 340 489 1,063
Disposals k= (306) (23) - (329)
At 31 December 2002 RZEZT-F
+=-—A=+—H 1,330 771 1,464 3,565
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2002 RIBE_F
+ZA=+—H 297 252 912 1,461
At 31 December 2001 RZZTE—
+ZA=+—H 467 422 375 1,264
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13.

14.

FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13.

The net book value of the fixed assets of the Company and
of the Group held under finance leases included in the total
amount of motor vehicles at 31 December 2002 amounted
to HK$912,000 (2001: HK$375,000) and HK$912,000 (2001:
HK$375,000), respectively.

Had the Group’s leasehold land and building been carried at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, its carrying value would have been
approximately HK$600,000 (2001: HK$640,000).

EE&EE (#)

RARRRAEEREREREREZEE
BEZEEDFE PERZZETZF+=
R=+—H#B%E55:%912,000& T (=%
£ — 4 :375,000/% 7T) % 912,000/ 7T (=
=T —4:375,00087C) 2 THE -

Wt RIEFHIRELRANFRREITE R
TAFRESEAK HEEEBDN A
600,000/ 7T (ZZFZ —4 :640,000/8 7T) °

DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS 14, BEEZEZREAX
Group REE
HK$’000
FHET
Cost: RARE
At beginning of year R F ) 4,752
Additions wNE 1,095
Write-off T 8 (1,614)
At 31 December 2002 R_ZBE_F+-_RA=+—8H 4,233
Accumulated amortisation: RIF#
At beginning of year R F ) 3,081
Provided during the year FRNEE 2,766
Write-off it 54 (1,614)
At 31 December 2002 WR_BE_F+-_RA=+—H 4,233
Net book value: BR [FA -
At 31 December 2002 RZEZEF+=—A=+—H -

At 31 December 2001 R—_ZEZE—F+=-_A=+—H 1,671



15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. RHBRA 2R

Company

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMR G KA E 39,631 39,631
Due from subsidiaries FE U BT BB A B 2 RIE 338,724 272,391
Due to subsidiaries ENWMBARZRA (2,411) (2,699)

375,944 309,323
Provision for impairment (227,925) (91,925)

148,019 217,398

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- UM E AR 2 RIBBHEER R ERE
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. EEEE-
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15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Company

AT

Held directly:
BEERE:

Technology Venture

Investments Limited

Held indirectly:
BEESSEE

Light International

Holdings Limited

Sequent China/
Hong Kong Limited

Technology Venture
(Software) Holdings
Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
B
AMREREH

British Virgin Islands
RERUES

British Virgin Islands/PRC

RERLHER/TH

Hong Kong/PRC
B/ H

British Virgin Islands
RBRAMS

15.

Nominal value of
paid-up share/
registered capital
BREBRE/
AMEAzEE

Ordinary US$1,000
% % 1,0005% 7T

Ordinary US$10,000

A 10,000% T

Ordinary HK$10,000
3B 10,0007 7T

Ordinary US$1,000
L imAk1,000% T

RBEQTZERE (#)

TEMBARZFHFRBNT:

Percentage of
equity
attributable to

the Company
VNG
REBDL

100

100

91

100

Principal activities

FTEERE

Investment holding

REZB

Provision of

procurement services

KBRS

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

AHEAMRER K
R BRI RS

Investment holding
REEKR
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company

AT

Held indirectly: (continued)
MEFEE: ()

Topasia Computer Limited

Topsoft Limited

Windsor Enterprises Limited

Advanced Digital Technology

Company Limited

Advanced Digital Technology

Company Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
B
AMREREH

Hong Kong/PRC
B/

Hong Kong
R

British Virgin Islands/PRC
EBREREE /T

British Virgin Islands

RREZHS

Hong Kong/PRC
B/ H

15.

Nominal value of
paid-up share/
registered capital
BREBRE/
AZMEAzEE

Ordinary HK$10,000

iM% 10,0007 7T

Ordinary HK$10,000
LM% 10,0007 T

Ordinary US$10,000
3B 10,000% T

Ordinary US$1,000

T A1,000% 7T

Ordinary HK$2

ERR2ET

84

Annual Report 2002 % #§

RBEQTZERE (#)

Percentage of
equity
attributable to

the Company
VNG 3
REBDL

100

100

100

55

55

Principal activities

FTEERE

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

AHEBAMRER K
RETBREMRS

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

72 A ARHRE @ Rk
R E R R

Provision of marketing

services

RETHEERD

Investment holding

REBEZBR

Provision of systems
integration services and
software development

REZGEKRE R
B
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15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company

AT

Held indirectly: (continued)

MEsE: (8)

ILREEERER
BT AR AR
(note 1)

(BFEE1)

BERE (EE) BRAF
(note 2)
(H3E2)

BEEERERE (LE)
BRAF
(note 3)
(B3E3)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
B
AMREREH

PRC
hE

PRC
T

PRC
hE

15.

Nominal value of
paid-up share/
registered capital
BREBRE/
AZMEAzEE

Registered capital
US$3,000,000
AMER
3,000,000% 7t

Registered Capital
US$300,964
AMER
300,964 7T

Registered Capital
US$1,000,000
AfEA
1,000,000% 7T

Percentage of
equity
attributable to
the Company
VNG
REE D

55

100

100

RBEQTZERE (#)

Principal activities

FEERE

Provision of systems
integration services and
software development

REZGEKRE R
B

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

72 A AR E @ R
PR B R AR

Provision of system
integration and
maintenance services

REZBRERRRERE
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15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

bR EURE B RITA R QA is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established by Advanced Digital Technology
Company Limited in the PRC for a period of 15 years
commencing from the date of issuance of its business licence
on 31 October 2000.

TERE (EE) BRAF is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established by Topasia Computer Limited in the
PRC for a period of 20 years commencing from the date of
issuance of its business licence on 29 November 2001.

7 {5 B RHE R (£/8) BBR 2] is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established by Topasia Computer Limited in the
PRC for a period of 20 years commencing from the date of
issuance of its business licence on 28 January 2002.

During the year, the Group disposed of its interest in the

DMX Group, which amounted to a 51% interest as at 31

December 2001 and a 61% interest as at the date of disposal
(notes 4 and 27(c)).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

15.
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R B DR 2 ()
o e
1L ERERBGRELRIARAD AR

& 1> % - @ Advanced Digital Technology
Company Limited A R B R - R =TT
TE+A=+-BEmEMBRELage
At AF-

2. BERR(LB)BARDAR/DINED
% ' fiTopasia Computer Limited /7 Bl
R B -_ZEE-—F+—-—A-+NAHE
Elic el S Ry el iy o

3. BEELRKRS (L8) BRAAASR
SNE 1% i Topasia Computer Limited
RHRERL B ZETZ_F-A=+N
BEERREt AHEtAN_-T5-

FAAEBELEENDMXER Z# % 1
—ET - ¢+:ﬁ +—BzEExA
51% @ RS R B EmRIA61% (HEd
% 27(c)) °

E=ZERBLRMIZARTNER R
RIBZEAFEREAIBRAKSEEE
BEERIFN AT -EFERRIEHE
EARZHBERSRERN LK.
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16.

GOODWILL 16. BHE
The amount of the goodwill capitalised as an asset in the AWEMNBAREEACEHERERNEGEE
consolidated balance sheet, arising from the acquisition of EBBERBFAEERN #IWOT:
subsidiaries, is as follows:
Group rER
HK$'000
TFET
Cost: B
At beginning of year REA 75,372
Additional consideration paid AT EEIMRAE 20,000
Increase in equity interest in subsidiaries NN N E =Sl
(note 27(c)) (Bt 5£27(c) 17,716
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRERA R (113,088)
At 31 December 2002 R-ZZEZ-_F+-A=+—H -
Accumulated amortisation: RIEE -
At beginning of year REA 7,537
Provided during the year FRNEE 6,174
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRERA R (13,711)
At 31 December 2002 R-ZZEZ-_F+-_A=+—H -
Net book value: AR FE:
At 31 December 2002 R-ZZEZ-_F+-A=+—H -

At 31 December 2001 RZZEZE—F+=-_A=+—H 67,835

As detailed in notes 3 to the financial statements, on the
adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied the transitional
provision of SSAP 30 that permitted goodwill in respect of
acquisitions which occurred prior to 1 January 2001 to remain

eliminated against consolidated reserves.

RIFAE B RS 2 &5 A5 305 2 B
B (BRI BRERMEI) R_FT—
F-A—BAAARBEL 2 HENEER
RERETEHE-
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16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. B&E (&)
The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, NZTE—F— A — B ERENEA A
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 1 January EEMDARGEFEI Rz EEeEN
2001, is as follows: N
HK$'000
FET
Cost: B
At beginning of year REA 40,048
Additional consideration paid and payable T 1% % 5N &
(note 31(a)ii)(2)) (B 5E31(a)i)(2)) 3,200
At 31 December 2002 RZETE-_F+-_A=+—H 43,248
Accumulated impairment: RIERE:
At beginning of year and REVNER_ZTZZ
at 31 December 2002 +=—A=+—H -
Net amount: FEDERIER
At 31 December 2002 R-ZZ—_F+-_A=+—H 43,248
At 31 December 2001 R-_ZBE-F+-A=+—H

As further detailed in note 31(a)(ii) to the financial statements,
the Group acquired a 55% shareholding in a subsidiary during
the year ended 31 December 2000. Pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement, the seller is entitled to additional
consideration. In the year 2002, the second additional
consideration was quantified to be HK$3,200,000, which has
been accounted for as an adjustment to the cost of acquisition
previously recognised, and accordingly the amount of goodwill

previously arising has been adjusted in the current year.

40,048

QN B 75 3R R M RE 31 () (i AT i — 2 RE it K
SEREE-_ZZTF+_A=+—HI
FEBA—BHBARSS%RE-RIEE
EhE BB EREREIME-R-Z
ToF - F_HEBEIHIRELELA
3,200,0007% 7T+ 2 51| iR /& T B #E 52 UL B A
AZHAE RENELEZEEREERS
FUEH TR
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17.

LONG TERM INVESTMENT 17. RERE

The unlisted long term investment represents the cost of the I L R B & B K & @ 7 ChinaCast
Group’s investment in a 19.9% equity interest in ChinaCast Technology (BVI) Limited ([CCTJ) 19.9%
Technology (BVI) Limited (“CCT"), a company incorporated BE AR ok 7 3 B R AN - CCT T A B /&8 BE 2 B
in the British Virgin Islands. CCT is an Internet access and SEMK BUAEBRFBEAEMZE
content provider based in Hong Kong and the PRC and is GFEERRBERARHER 2P E
principally engaged in the provision of Internet and related IR E B R AE R AR TS o

services in the PRC.

The amount due from the investee company is further FEURIIEE R 2 RBE— NN T
analysed as follows:

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Wt FET FET

Loans advanced to the investee BT THRIBRERRZ
company, unsecured IR E R (a) 8,755 6,000
Other receivables H fth B K (b) 3,684 2,329
12,439 8,329

Notes: B & -

(a) Included in the total balance of loans advanced to the investee (a) FARL FHEBERR ZERBELE
company, HK$6,000,000 (2001: HK$6,000,000) is unsecured, 6,000,000/ 7T (—ZZ —4:6,000,000
interest-bearing at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2% BIT) EER REBEREMNEMES
per annum and is repayable on or before 15 May 2003. The 2EFBCEAR-ZZET=FRATAB
remaining balance of approximately HK$2,755,000 (2001: 2 HI{EIE - #2%8492,755,0008 L (=%
Nil) is unsecured, interest-bearing at the PRC bank lending T—F ) HEEE P EETER
rate and was repaid on 21 January 2003, MEFE BER_ZEZE=F—-A=-+—

HEEZ-
(b) The other receivables due from the investee company are (b) E U IEE AR FIB I EKF B

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

BB EE AR
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18.

19.
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INVENTORIES

18.

90
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wH

HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E o FET

Information technology FEEE 2
products held for resale & RHRE @ 15,989 14,795
Work in progress T2 8,956 -
24,945 14,795

None of the above inventories was carried at net realisable
value at the balance sheet date (2001: Nil).

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable as at
the balance sheet date, based on invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

19.

REFR Ll FEWFRAERFAEA
B(ZTT—F:F)-

BRERERRE

REEH KEEZEHAEEL NG
BRZEYRBARZBREDTIT

Group

TEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT F T
Current to 90 days BIHAZE 90K 20,204 145,678
91 days to 180 days 91 RKE180K 13,868 9,887
181 days to 365 days 181K E365K 11,854 25,594
Over 365 days 365K A 23,196 16,638
69,122 197,797

Included in the Group’'s accounts receivable is an amount
due from the Group's related company, of which certain
directors of a subsidiary of the Company are directors, of
HK$7,343,000 (2001: HK$5,208,000), which is repayable on
similar credit terms to those offered to other customers of
the Group.

AEEZEWRERERRASEEA BE
AE(ARA—EHBARZETESRA
H#EE)RIE7,343,0008 7 (- T — £
5,208,000 0) BIERASEHA T EME
FZHRHNEEGRTUER

o1
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20.

21.

PREPAYMENTS,
RECEIVABLES

DEPOSITS AND OTHER

The aggregate amount of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables included an amount of HK$30,000,000 (2001:
Nil), representing the consideration receivable from several
purchasers in connection with the disposal of DMX.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, an amount of
HK$5,000,000 was settled in accordance with the Agreement
as defined in note 4. The remaining amount of
HK$25,000,000 is receivable on 30 April 2003 pursuant to

the Agreement.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group
rEE

ANREBE - RERAEMERR

TE AT RRIE i @ T H A FE WK 48 R B AE
it & DMXFE U E + & 75 K 30,000,000
T(ZTZE—F:FT) REERE
5,000,000/ T 2 1R 15 MY 51 4P R E 1 8 (B
2o R IE 13 % - #2 %8 25,000,000 JTE R =
TZ=FMA=+BYE-

RERBALSEEY

Company

ARF

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFET FET FET
Cash and bank balances Re RIBTHER 26,653 97,109 341 20,515
Time deposits EHER 64,002 31,936 15,030 -
90,655 129,045 15,371 20,515
Less: Pledged time deposits: i : & # € #7730

Pledged for bank loans HRRITERER (27,649) (29,193) (15,030) -

Pledged for bank MIRITBEZHER
overdrafts (2,776) (2,743) - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEED 60,230 97,109 341 20,515

At the balance sheet date, the cash and cash equivalents of

the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$55,599,000 (2001: HK$58,676,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

REER RNEBUARB (TARK]) 4
BZHekBAESFMEYR55599,000/8 T
—ZET—45:58,676,00087T) c ARER
AEBERASEMEE AT REFEI
B B T MR D) B A B S RE R R EEE IR AR E
REEEEEBEFETINERF 2 RTT
BARER B SEMBEE-
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ﬁl,:

22. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE 22. ENRERZE

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i & FET FE T

Trade and bills payables ENESREERER 24,638 84,236

Due to certain minority shareholders & F 2 &R 2 38 (a) 983 1,052

Due to related companies ENEBEQARZREA (b) 651 850

Due to another related company RS —HBERELA

2 HIE (c) - 22
26,272 86,160

Notes: B it -

(a) The amounts due to certain minority shareholders of certain (a) BNTETHBRAREFTLEREREZRK
subsidiaries represent trade payables, which are unsecured, BAENE SIRE ML FRE &K
interest-free and are repayable according to the terms agreed R LS REBRBEZEVHERERE
with these minority shareholders. ZIERER

(b) The amounts due to related companies, representing trade (b) ENTFEREQARZRBRENFAR
payables to certain related companies in which the directors RETHEBEARESMEEEESCE
of certain subsidiaries of the Company are also directors, are FTEREARZENESRE mitSE
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of REDEEFR 2 REBETEER
repayment.

() The amount represented trade payables to certain members (c) ZEFEIEEMER DMNERSE TK

ARIZENESERE MEEFERED

of the Datacraft Asia Ltd Group, were unsecured, interest- 8
free and had no fixed terms of repayment. EER REREETEEESR
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22. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE (continued) 22. ENREREE #
An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable as at the REBER KEBEEZAHAREREZEMNE
balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows: BEEREBEZERRTOT:
Group
AEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Current to 90 days BIHRZ= 90K 14,239 67,009
91 days to 180 days 91 RZE 180K - 10,966
181 days to 365 days 181K E365K 3,220 1,979
Over 365 days 365K E 8,813 6,206
26,272 86,160

23. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. E:tE8GEREMEFMAR

Group Company
z39 LN

Notes HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
ok=3 FHET FET FET FET
Accrued and FEET &
other liabilities Hmafk 54,373 53,195 1,599 691
Due to a minority ~ JEff —& D&
shareholder MR 2 FRIE (a) 25,478 27,208 - -
Due to another ERS—%
minority LEREZ
shareholder IE (b) 10,000 18,720 - -
89,851 99,123 1,599 691
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December 2002 —ZF T =

F+-A=+-~

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

(continued)

Notes:

Part of the amount due to a minority shareholder of a
subsidiary of approximately HK$14,344,000 (2001:
HK$16,074,000) represents the outstanding purchase
consideration payable for the acquisition of a 55%
shareholding in a subsidiary in the prior year (note 31(a)(ii)).
This balance is unsecured and interest-free. Except for an
amount of approximately HK$770,000 (2001: HK$2,500,000)
which is repayable upon the issue of the signed/certified
financial statements of the second post-acquisition accounting
period from 1 September 2001 to 31 August 2002 of the
subsidiary by the auditors of the subsidiary, the remainder of
this balance of approximately HK$13,574,000 (2001:
HK$13,574,000) is repayable on demand.

The remaining balance of approximately HK$11,134,000
(2001: HK$11,134,000) represents an amount advanced from
the minority shareholder to provide for working capital of
this subsidiary. The balance is unsecured, interest-free and is
repayable on demand.

The balance due to another minority shareholder represents
the outstanding purchase consideration payable for the
acquisition of the Group’s initial 51% shareholding in DMX
(notes 16 and 31(a)(iii)). The balance is unsecured, interest-
free and is repayable upon the issuance of the signed/certified
accounts of the subsidiary for the year ended 31 December
2002 by the auditors of the subsidiary.

23.
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st RERH B ()

M et

HOEN —RMBRAR —BLVERE
KIEH) 514,344,000 T (Z 2T —F:
16,074,000/87T) » Jy E—FEWE —XK
M ABISS%MEE MAREEEENRE
(M EE31()) ~ W rEE A EIR R R 2
BB #4770,0008 7 (2T —fF:
2,500,000/ 7T) 2 RIBERME A B
BB HERE HEZHBRRAIEZ
BlREEStSHE (Z22—FhLA—
BZE-ZZ-_FN\A=+—8) #BKRK
KIBEEIN 413,574,000 7T 2 458
(ZZZ—£:13,574,0008 7t) HATE

ERMEE-

#4911,134,0008 T2 hFE (Z T T —F
11,134,000/ 7T) Th D BURR 232 F 3%
MBARHELEES ZHEREEM-
RERERERER

BNFRE—BLBBRRIBEARNFE
U B8 A 52 EADMX 2 H1 2551 % AL 2 &
BEEBERE (ME16K&31(a)i) %
HREAEER 28 WARZNERA]
REMBREE—_TTE_F+_F= +f
AIEFEEREES ZEZHEBEL
BREBER-
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24,

INTEREST-BEARING AND
LOANS

SECURED BANK 24.

MEREEARTER

Group
rEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Bank overdrafts, secured wITEZ HEA 592 -
Trust receipt loans repayable AR—FNERZET
within one year, secured WEE R KA 514 26,917
Bank loans repayable within AR —FAEERE 2R
one year, secured B3 A 11,887 10,000
12,993 36,917

As at 31 December 2002, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured as follows:

(a) The Group’'s overdraft facilities amounting to
HK$2,000,000 (2001: HK$3,000,000), of which
HK$592,000 (2001: Nil) had been utilised as at the
balance sheet date, are secured by the pledge of
certain of the Group’s time deposits amounting to
HK$2,776,000 (2001: HK$2,743,000) (note 21).

(b) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

(i) corporate guarantees executed by the
Company to the extent of HK$86,000,000
(2001: HK$86,000,000);

(ii) the pledge of the Group's time deposits
amounting to approximately HK$27,649,000
(2001: HK$29,193,000) (note 21);

(iii) a corporate guarantee executed by a subsidiary
of the investee company to the extent of
RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,830,000)
(2001: Nil); and

(iv) a corporate guarantee executed by a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company,
to the extent of Nil (2001: RMB1,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$935,000)).

TE_F+_A=+—H AEEIR
ZEBROT:

NEEE Y {Z52,000,000%8 7T (=
T E —4:3,000,000/8 L) B &
592,000 L (Z T —F:2) 2
REEBBA ZRBEURERE
TFEHTF2,776,0008 T (- E=
— % :2,743,0007 7T ) EE I (M
F$21) e

AEEETRITERZEFOT:

(i) R ] HE 2 86,000,000
B (ZEZE — F
86,000,000/ ) A A) ¥
R

(ii) AEEEREHERNA
27,649,000/ 7 (T2 —
£:29,193,000/&7T) (M=%
21)

(iii) WRE QR —HEWE R
B2 AR 3,000,0007T
(48 % 72,830,000/ T )
(Z2ZE—F:F)QalkE
R R

(iv) ARl —RKMBAR— %
LERERHEZARES
T (ZEZE—F: AR
1,000,0007t ) (& 4
935,000/ ) A Al EIR °
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FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 25.

The Company and the Group lease a motor vehicle for
business use. This lease is classified as a finance lease and

has remaining lease terms of more than two years.

As at 31 December 2002, the total future minimum lease

96
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AR KA
FARRAEEBE-—BAREBRRZ
A AT AR A T AR
AMFN L.

R-ZEZE-_F+-A=+—H MEHEE

payments under finance leases were as follows: ZARRKEESLFENOT
Group Company
rEHE AN

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts payable: JE A FRIE
Within one year —FR 569 337 569 337
In the second year F_F 372 337 372 337
In the third to fifth E-EERF
years, inclusive (BERMF
BEEN) 522 140 522 140
Total minimum finance FEMEE &K
lease payments HewsE 1,463 814 1,463 814
Future finance charges RIRRLE B R (217) (148) (217) (148)
Total net finance lease BEHERN
payables HIB 4R FFE 1,246 666 1,246 666
Portion classified as N RREERE
current liabilities Z &5 (526) (270) (526) (270)
Long term portion REE H 720 396 720 396
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25. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued) 25. BMEMHEEARIE @)

MEHErREHSREE-—TOoNM

The present value of minimum lease payments under finance

leases is further analysed as follows: T
Group Company
rEH YN

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts payable: J& 1~ SR FE
Within one year —FR" 526 270 526 270
In the second year FF 290 302 290 302
In the third to fifth E=EERF
years, inclusive (BERMEF
BREEAR) 430 94 430 94
Total present value of HEHEE 2
minimum lease payments REREE 1,246 666 1,246 666
26. DEFERRED TAX 26. EEHE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

At beginning of year REH 233 311
Credit for the year — note 10 NEFHEE - M0 - (78)
At 31 December W+=ZR=+—H 233 233




DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. ELEBIE (4)

The principal components of the Group’s deferred tax liability/ REBEEHEEE (BE) ZXE2HH
(asset) position and the amounts not provided for in the RUWRENBERETRBEE 2EBOT:

financial statements are as follows:

Provided Not provided

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T TETT T TETT

Accelerated depreciation mERTERBE
allowances -
Tax losses carried forward HEEMIEEE (3,718)

(4,067) (3,718)

The Company had no significant potential deferred tax R-ZEZE-_F+_-_A=+—H AAQaL
liabilities for which provision has not been made as at 31 ERBECERNEBECREHBEER (ZF
December 2002 (2001: Nil). T—F:E)o
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

27. BRAE

iz 7

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F T
Authorised: FETERAK:
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares FREE.10/8 T2
of HK$0.10 each & 3@ % 1,000,000,0000% 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREERE:
501,210,000 (2001: 362,000,000) “MEEO0.108 T2 L@
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 501,210,0004%
(ZZ&Z—1%:362,000,000/%) 50,121 36,200

During the year, the movements in the share capital of the

Company, together with the reasons therefor, were as follows:

(a) On 2 March 2002, 30,769,231 ordinary shares were
issued at a price of HK$0.65 per share to a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary for the settlement of the
first instalment of the outstanding consideration of
HK$20,000,000 in relation to the acquisition of the
Group's initial 51% equity interest in DMX. Further

details of the acquisition are set out in notes 31(a)(iii)

to the financial statements.

(b) Pursuant to a placing agreement and a subscription
agreement both dated 21 May 2002, the Company,
through an independent placing agent, placed
60,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in
the Company at a price of HK$0.53 per share to
independent third parties. A sum of approximately
HK$30,000,000, net of placement expenses, was
raised and used as working capital of the Group.

(a) REZTZTZZF=A=H m—MBH
BRAR—RLHRRETLBER
30,769,231 AR {EE0.65% 7T -
VATE 18 78 B8 W iE 7R 5 B R DMX #)
51 %R A R M AREEREZ
& H320,000,0005 7T A B B 2
HtFBEHRNTBREN
FE31(a)(ii)°

(b) KIERESHAE-TT_FRAA -1
—HAvBEHERRERZE O
AERS —BURERE R
053 BT 2 ERABIE=EE
ARAREHREENETL TR
[ 60,000,000/% ° L it 5 15 7 1Bk
it & & A 12 £ 15 430,000,000/
T REREEEEEE-
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27.
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 27. B (®)

(o) On 4 June 2002, the Group entered into an agreement (0 RZZZ_FRAMNAB - KNEEE
for the acquisition of an additional 10% shareholding 37 15 - LA B 28,080,000 It [A]
in DMX from the minority shareholder of the Group A& B D 2R R U BB DMXEE S
for a consideration of HK$28,080,000, which 10%0% 4 E £ 217,716,000
generated goodwill of HK$17,716,000 (note 16). On T (MisE16) RZZEZE-_F LA+
19 July 2002, the consideration was fully settled by NE ARABIRER0.562B T2 B
the allotment and issue of a total of 49,964,413 shares I BC B 31T 6 249,964,413 iR
of the Company at a price of HK$0.562 per share. MmEHEERE - ZEXFHEK
The transaction constitutes a connected and share LETHRAAECHEERKRNIZ S
transaction as defined in the Listing Rules. Further BERE—FSHBERAARANR_-Z
details of the transaction are included in the THFRNAZ+TWAZ@EK-
Company'’s circular of 24 June 2002.

(d) In July and August 2002, the Company repurchased (d) R-ZZEZE_FEARN\A RQF
1,524,000 shares of the Company on The Stock REBBAERXSMBERAREEE
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at an aggregate B 9 1,524,0000% - 2 X B &
consideration of HK$355,904 with relevant expenses 355,904 00 B BEF LB &5,107
incurred of HK$5,107. BT

(e) A summary of the transactions during the year with (e) FR-BFELAARR L BRRR
reference to the above movements of the Company’s BH R SMAMMT
issued ordinary share capital is as follows:

Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BRTROHE BETBRE ROBER @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET
At 1 January 2002 i
—A— 362,000,000 36,200 277,121 313,321
Issue of consideration  ZETTHRER® (a)
shares (a) 30,769,231 3,077 16,923 20,000
Placement of fic & ¥ iz 13 (b)
new shares (b) 60,000,000 6,000 25,800 31,800
Issue of consideration TR EMR ()
shares (c) 49,964,413 4,996 23,084 28,080
Share issue expenses R ETER - - (1,648) (1,648)
140,733,644 14,073 64,159 78,232
Shares repurchased (d) 2 EERKRH (d) (1,524,000) (152) (209) (361)
501,209,644 50,121 341,071 391,192

During the year ended 31 December 2001, there were
no changes to the carrying amount or the number of
ordinary shares in issue.

HE-_ZTZZ—F+_F=+—HI1t
FE BETEBR2EEEIH
B I & T ] Z & o
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28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

SSAP 34 was adopted during the year, as explained in note 2
and under the heading “Employee benefits” in note 3 to the
financial statements. As a result, these detailed disclosures
relating to the Company’s share option scheme are now
included in the notes to the financial statements. In the prior
year, these disclosures were included in the Report of the
Directors, as their disclosure is also a requirement of the

Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 12 June 1999 (the “Previous Scheme”), the Company has
granted certain options to directors and employees of the
Group, including the executive directors of the Company, to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company subject to the
terms and conditions stipulated therein. In order to comply
with the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
on granting options under share option schemes, which took
effect from 1 September 2001, the Previous Scheme was
terminated and a new share options scheme (the “New
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to ordinary resolutions
passed by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 30 May 2002. Accordingly, no further
options can be granted under the Previous Scheme as from
30 May 2002. However, for the options remaining outstanding
under the Previous Scheme, the existing rights of the grantees

are not affected.

Pursuant to the Previous Scheme, the subscription price is
equal to the higher of the nominal value of the shares of the
Company or 80% of the average of the closing prices per
share of the Company quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the share options. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options were able to be granted under the Previous
Scheme could not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of

the Company from time to time.

28.

BRESE

M BSIR KR FE2 RT3 [E BB A A
Mg ARRRFRRME T ERIFE 345
Bt ZEERAABBEBRESE 2FE
BEROCHAMBRRMT-REF %F
BERLTRARERIREETEHEAR-

REARBDR-AANFARA+ZBERR
ZEEEE ([EEE]) ARRRAAE
SEEENERS (BEARARTES) K
A TR R AR AR A B R
BEEXEBGRRGHER - REER-F
Z-FNA-BERNLERRAUFEITES
BMiREEREAIRIBREZNRE:
EEEERR L IRERAR-FF
“HERAA=TRETZARFABRREFK
EIRB N ERIRE R R ROEE &
(I#at8) At B =TT -_FRA=
TREMSREEAAIE-PREBER
BmARARESERE MM ARITE
ZHEBREZRAENATZZE-

REBEEATE RBEBRERARARMN
EEXARFTBRNNEZBERER L A S
A T8 22 5 A B A2 P A RS 19 U (B
B0%zEmE -REEAMET FTREZ
BREARBOROEE RZTBBHE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Company may grant options

to eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the Company

subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. A

summary of the New Scheme is as follows:

(a) Purpose

(b) Eligible

Participants

(c) Total number
of shares
available for
issue under
the New

Scheme

(d) Maximum
entitlement of
each Eligible
Participant

To enable the Company to grant options
to Eligible Participants (as defined below)
as incentives and rewards for their

contribution to the Group.

Being employees or executives or
officers of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (including their respective
executive and non-executive directors) and
suppliers, consultants and advisers who will

or have provided services to the Group.

The total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the New Scheme
must not exceed 30% of the shares of

the Company in issue.

The total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed
1% of the number of shares of the

Company in issued at the date of grant.

28.
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28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Period under -
which the
shares must
be taken up
under an
option

Minimum period -
for which
an option must
be held before
it can be
exercised

Basis of -
determining
the exercise
price

Remaining -
life of the
New Scheme

Period within -
which payments/
calls/loans
must be made/
repaid

Amount payable -
on acceptance of
the option

The period during which the options may
be exercised is determined by the
board of directors of the Company at its
absolute discretion, save that no option
may be exercised after more than 10 years
from the date of adoption of the New
Scheme after it has been granted but
subject to early termination of the New
Scheme.

There is no minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

It must be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of the grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

The New Scheme remains in force until
29 May 2012 unless otherwise terminated
in accordance with the terms stipulated
therein.

28 days from the date of the offer of
the options.

HK$1.00

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 38,296,000
share options outstanding under the share option scheme.
The exercise in full of the remaining share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 38,296,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and proceeds, before relevant share issue expenses,
of HK$21,695,000.

28.

BRESE @

(e) iz - ATRBREZHREEA
BRER QAFNEFEIENBRE
RERMD  ERMAFHEE A EG
Z R TERABTERLRE.

il 7 T ) A B AT AR Lk

) & - BETEBRENASE -
BRER BRREHRZAE-
BRABZ
REHR

() B - TEEARNUTESE:()A
TEE ARBRORELEEH (AR
ZEE EER)EBMIMEARE

R BT E (AR AR
HREERLAHIREE
XREBRZAEARERMA
WF U B R i
(o

(h) #Erd - WHE-BEAR EE-F

#®T ——F#RA-t+hAB AL
BB BrIEIR B H 5 B8R 2 4 AR
M:o
() AfEd/ - BRZBEREBRBHEF; -1
BER®E/ NBR-
B
»>E/
EXHR
(i) =& — 1.00/E e
A S
FERT B

PRI B T 45 A AR A S SR AR R
RERRZHER-

REEE B - ANA R 155 38,296,00015 KA 8 %
BB T RETHEZBRE-BEARD
RIZHITHRAGE MEtp 2 BREES
HOFE AARBEHEIMETLER
38,296,000/% Rt BN ETER AT
15 5 T8 421,695,000 7T
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the share

option scheme during the year:

Number of share options

EYE
Granted
during
At the year At
1 January under the Cancelled 31 December
2002 New Scheme during 2002
Grantee RZBEE EEERE theyear R-ZE=E
ERA -B-8 EEE b AEEHE t-A=t-8
Directors £ %
Mr. Chow Siu Lam, 500,000 - - 500,000
Cliff
RORTE
400,000 - - 400,000
900,000 - - 900,000
Mr. Emmy Wu - 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
REMEE
- 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
Ms. Teo Chor Khin, - 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
Jismyl
BERT
- 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
Mr. Tang Kin Hung, - 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
Barry
il s
- 3,800,000 - 3,800,000

28.

Date of grant
REAH

31 May 2000

“Z%%F

BA=T-H

24 May 2001

“3%-%
il ]

27 June 2002

-E3-&

.

AAEZTER

27 June 2002

B

S5

~AEZTER

27 June 2002

B

S5

AAZTER
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FR BREFEETEUNTHRITREZ

B

Share price of

the Company Exercise period
at grant date ** Exercise  of share options
* RREAEA price *+* BREZ
* REZRBER fTRE L
HK$2.60 HK§1.82 31 May 2001 to
30 May 2010
2605 1808 T >
1A=1-H
£7%-%
TA=1H
HK$1.19 HK$0.91 24 May 2002 to
23 May 2011
11987 091% 7 “EECF
il s
E25--%
RAZt=H
HK$0.415 HK$0.431 27 June 2003 to
30 May 2012
0.415% 7 0431 T ZEECE
NEZtEH
E2R-C
BA=TH
HK$0.415 HK$0.431 27 June 2003 to
30 May 2012
041557 043157 > 4.3
NEZtEH
E2%-C
BA=TH
HK$0.415 HK$0.431 27 June 2003 to
30 May 2012
041557 043157 > 1.3
AAZTEA
E_E-CF
BA=TH
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 28. BREFTE ®

Number of share options

BhEYE
Granted
during Share price of
At the year At the Company
1 January under the Cancelled 31 December at grant date ** Exercise period
2002 New Scheme during 2002 REY Exercise  of share options
Grantee R-222F TEERE theyear R-ZZ-F Date of grant*  AHAAT price *** BREZ
ERA -B-H HAERA AEERE t-AZt-8 REAH:  ZROER g il
Other employees
EfES
In aggregate 2,198,000 - (878,000) 1,320,000 21 Jan 2000 HK$3.175 HK$2.532 21 Jan 2001 to
% 20 Jan 2010
ot £ £ 12 3AT5ET 2532371 >
-R-t-A -B-+-A
E_T-%f
—-RZ-TH
200,000 - (200,000) - 29 Sep 2000 HK$2.90 HK$2.108 29 Sept 2001 to
28 Sept 2010
e 29087 21083 Z%%-
AAZthA AE=tnA
E_R-%F
ARZTIE
50,000 - (50,000) - 27 Dec 2000 HK$1.67 HK$1.481 27 Dec 2001 to
26 Dec 2010
e 1674 T 14815 Z%%-
tZAZttH +tZAzt+h
ECT-%E
TZAZtRA
4,154,000 - (960,000 3,194,000 24 May 2001 HK$1.19 HK$0.91 24 May 2002 to
23 May 2011
it £ S 119% T 091ET > 3
RA-TOA il s 1=
ECE——f
RA-t=H
- 22,286,000 (804,000) 21,482,000 27 Jun 2002 HK$0.415 HK$0.431 27 Jun 2003 to
30 May 2012
2 0.415% T 0.431%T Z%%=
NAZTER AAZTtH
E_E-CF
HA=TH
6,602,000 22,286,000 (2,892,000) 25,996,000
Total

BE 7,502,000 33,686,000 (2,892,000 38,296,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
the grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

*x The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date
of the grant of the share options is the closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the trading day
immediately prior to the date of the grant of the options.

ki The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s consolidated reserves and
the movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 43 of the financial

statements.

The revised SSAP 11 was adopted during the year, as
explained in note 2 and under the heading “Foreign
currencies” in note 3 to the financial statements. As
a result, the profit and loss accounts of overseas
subsidiaries are now translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year,
rather than at the exchange rates at the balance sheet
date, as was previously the case. The change has had

no material effect on the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 1999 over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in

exchange therefor.

28.

29.
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AR ZBHERBRFRNETFIE
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29. RESERVES (continued) 29. f#fE (&
(b) Company (b) b NN
Share
premium  Contributed Accumulated

account surplus losses Total
% 17 5 B Bk EON - 2BER BE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik S FET S FAT
At 1 January 2001 R-EZ-_F—F—H 277,121 39,431 (1,512) 315,040
Net loss for the year AEEFEE - - (105,493) (105,493)

At 31 December 2001 RZZEZT—F

and 1 January 2002 +ZA=+—-Ak

—“22-F#—-H—H 277121 39,431 (107,005) 209,547
Issue of shares BITR M 27 65,808 - - 65,808
Share issue expenses BROETER 27 (1,648) - - (1,648)
Repurchase of shares ATl 27 (209) - - (209)
Net loss for the year AEEFER - - (151,563) (151,563)

At 31 December 2002 RZTTZF
+ZA=+—"H 341,072 39,431 (258,568) 121,935

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the combined net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the same
reorganisation as mentioned in note 29(a) above, over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus is

currently unable to be distributed.

RRARZ BB BRI E XX T
29(a)FiT it [R] — T8 5 48 BT WL B B /B
RAIZAWEEFERRZR i
WA 1T 2 AR RIRGEES S
CHE-BREBEERE-NAN—FA
A ARRBRKINEIREAR
o
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(a)

Prior year adjustments

SSAP 15 (Revised) was adopted during the current
year, as detailed in note 2 to the financial statements,
which has resulted in a change to the layout of the
consolidated cash flow statement. The consolidated
cash flow statement is now presented under three
headings: cash flows from operating activities,
investing activities and financing activities. Previously
five headings were used, comprising the three
headings listed above, together with cash flows from
returns on investments and servicing of finance and
from taxes paid. The significant reclassifications
resulting from the change in presentation are that
taxes paid are now included in cash flows from
operating activities, and interest received is now
included in cash flows from investing activities. The
presentation of the 2001 comparative cash flow
statement has been changed to accord with the new

layout.

The method of calculation of certain items in the
consolidated cash flow statement has changed under
the revised SSAP 15, as explained under the heading
“Foreign currencies” in note 3 to the financial
statements. Cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
now translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchanges rates at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. Previously, the cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries were translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchanges rates at the balance sheet
date. This change has resulted in no impact to the
amounts previously reported for the 2001 comparative

cash flow statement.

30.
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Prior year adjustments (continued)

Also, the definition of “cash equivalents” under the
revised SSAP 15 has been revised from that under the
previous SSAP 15, as explained under the heading
“Cash and cash equivalents” in note 3 to the financial
statements. This has resulted in trust receipt loans no
longer qualifying as cash equivalents. The amount of
cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow
statement at 31 December 2001 has been adjusted
to remove trust receipt loans amounting to
HK$26,917,000 previously included at that date. The
year's movement in trust receipt loans is now included
in cash flows from financing activities and the
comparative cash flow statement has been changed

accordingly.

Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, the Group entered into
finance lease arrangements in respect of fixed
assets with a total capital value at the
inception of the leases of HK$899,000 (2001:
Nil).

(i) On 2 March 2002, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 30,769,231 shares of the
Company at a price HK$0.65 per share for a
consideration of HK$20,000,000 to settle the
first instalment of the

consideration of HK$20,000,000 in relation to

outstanding

the acquisition of a 51% equity interest in
DMX. Further details of which are set out in

notes 27(a) and 31(a)(iii).

30.

wa

(a)

(b)

BeRBRZME (@)

A—F2RE8 (E)

UESN BB S RER M 3[R & &
ReLTEY]MER RELEBTE
PRI 155 BA G ERIZE 15
RIRSFEY] 2EBEDIEET
ZIETTEB BB ERTHINA
ReEEEW- RN _TT—F+_H
=t—BZHAReRERTHE
CEBYHBECELHRE REB
TETAZAZEREEEX
26,917,000 Tt B E R 2
FESBHBARTAREETHMEZ
Remns2 MEBESRERDIE

TRIRERS

(i) FRN-AEERETEEER]
VmERERH R
WRETEECZERBE
#899,0008 L (ZZFZ —
F:F)o

(ii) RZTEE-_F=ZA-H'K
REIREBR0.658 T2 E
BT R B B A H
30,769,231 AN~ & B 17 -
X & 420,000,0005 7T bA
45 B B DMX 51%#%
oz Kk B E R E
20,000,000/ T &) & Bi - 7F
& R M 5E27(a) & 31(a)ii)
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Major non-cash transactions (continued)

(iii) On 19 July 2002, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 49,964,413 shares of the
Company at a price of HK$0.562 per share to
settle the consideration of HK$28,080,000 in
relation to the acquisition of an additional

10% shareholding in DMX (note 27(c)).

Restricted cash and cash equivalent balances

Certain of the Group’s time deposits are pledged to a
bank to secure a bank overdraft and a bank loan
granted to the Group, as further explained in notes

21 and 34.
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(b)

(c)

TEFREXH (B)

(iii)

RZZETE=_F+A+hB"
KD FEEROS62E
T B BT REEE
49,964,413 AN Tk -
VA #5 B B3 1 B DMXEE 51
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW  30.

STATEMENT (continued)

(d)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

WEEH B 2 A

GERERERZMTE 8

HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi&T FrET
Net assets acquired: BAZEERE:
Fixed assets EE & E - 239
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTHER - 1,898
Accounts receivable, FEUAR 5% A BRI
prepayments and T H Ath JE U 5k
other receivables - 33,765
Inventories e~ - 6,226
Due from a company EBEAN—HRQF
of the Group for the E R KB A A
subscription of new 2 R FE A R E
shares of the subsidiary - 65,000
Accounts payable and FERTARIE R H Ath
other accrued liabilities FEEtafE - (19,623)
Minority interests 2 e - (42,877)
- 44,628
Goodwill on acquisition WHEE 2 BE - 75,372
- 120,000
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration 21 & FEAF
paid and payable ReRE - 95,000
Reclassification from FLWEREZ
deposit paid for an EffReEMmH 8
unlisted investment -

25,000

120,000
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

(d) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries

is as follows:

30.

Annual Report 2002 4 ¥

FERERERZME (@

(d WHEWB2E (&)

RWBEBHBRARSR2HE KRS
SEMRLFBEZ2HOMMT:

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash consideration paid ENRENRERE
and payable - 95,000
Cash consideration payable B R4 Bk B Y
for the subscription of new 2 REEM B A /&5
shares of the subsidiary ERBESNRE
which eliminated on
consolidation - (65,000)
Cash consideration payable [EIR& N (B
(note 23(b)) (P 5E23(b)) - (18,720)
Cash consideration paid ENReRE - 11,280
Cash and bank balances BAZRS RIRTTHEH
acquired - (1,898)
Net outflow of cash and HBEHBARS R
cash equivalents in respect RERBEZEY
of the acquisition of R R
subsidiaries - 9,382

The subsidiaries acquired in the prior year contributed
HK$127,000,000 to the Group’s turnover and HK$12,100,000
to the consolidated loss after tax and before minority interests
for the year ended 31 December 2001 following the
acquisition.

During the current year, the Group acquired an additional
10% equity interest in DMX, as detailed in notes 27(c) and
30(b)(iii).

EFBAZHBRARRBEARGEAERE
E-ET-F+-_A=+-—BLEEZE
¥BRBRBBMAT DR EERA 2R
A BB D Bl A& 127,000,000 T &
12,100,000 7T °

REFEN  REBEREDMXEIN 0%
FH1E M EE27(c) B 30(b)iii) ©
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW  30.
STATEMENT (continued)

(e)

Disposal of subsidiaries

HEHWE 2R

GEBERERZME @)

48,975

Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
B &t FiET FiET
Net assets disposed of: EEHCEEFE: 13
Fixed assets EE&E 4,083 -
Goodwill Bl 16 99,377 -
Inventories FE 4,469 -
Accounts receivable, FE YRR 5k - TA N 3R1E
prepayments and other Ko E At & W 5K
receivables 123,783 -
Pledged time deposits A E BF R 14,738 -
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHH 16,134 -
Accounts payable and FE S BR AR R H
other accrued liabilities EEtBE& (27,009) -
Tax HiE (6,740) -
Secured bank loan BEEBRITER (16,399) -
Minority interests DER R ER (44,098) -
168,338 -
Loss on disposal of LEMBARZEIE 7
subsidiaries (119,363) -
48,975 -
Satisfied by: FA S
Cash consideration received B U & B U & K (B
and receivable 50,000 -
less: Legal expenses paid W E SN2
incidental to EEER
the disposal (1,025) -
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW  30.

STATEMENT (continued)

(e)

Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries

is as follows:
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BEBRERERZMEE @)

(e) HEMBAR (&)

FRLEMNBRARzRERASSE
EmzRERbAMAOT:

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash consideration received & U & & Y38 & K (B
and receivable 50,000 -
Cash consideration not yet & R Y E 2 38 & (& (K #£20)
received (note 20) (30,000) -
Offset with payable in EIHFR U RN B AR
relation to the acquisition R ERR
of the subsidiaries
in the prior year (10,000) -
Cash and bank balances BHEZRE RRITEHR
disposed of (16,134) -
Legal expenses paid HEEZN 2 EEER
incidental to the disposal (1,025) -
Net outflow of cash and HEMBLARPRZ2EE R
cash equivalents in ReEEYRLFE
respect of the disposal
of subsidiaries (7,159) -
The results of the subsidiaries disposed of during the HZE ToF+ZA=+—HL

year ended 31

December 2002 contributed

HK$155,289,000 to turnover and HK$18,457,000 to
the consolidated loss after tax and before minority

interests for the year ended 31 December 2002.

—-=
FEELZHBLARESE HAME
BE-_ZZ-_F+-A=+—81
FEzEXBREBEMARTDH
R E =B 2R AR B
155,289,000/ 7t & 18,457,000/%

JC°
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31.

COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments
(i) At the balance sheet date, the Group was

committed to make a capital injection to a

subsidiary in the PRC of approximately

HK$12,472,629 (2001:

HK$21,052,481).

(i) In 2000, the Group entered into a sale and

purchase agreement (the

“S&P Agreement”)

with an independent third party (the “Seller”)

for the acquisition of a 55% shareholding in

a subsidiary (the

“Subsidiary”) for a total

consideration of HK$36,750,000, of which

HK$23,176,000 (2001:

HK$23,176,000) has

been settled up to the balance sheet date.

In addition, pursuant to the S&P Agreement,

the Seller is entitled to additional consideration

calculated as follows:

(1

The first additional consideration was
calculated by multiplying
HK$6,200,000 by the quotient of the
audited profit after tax of the
Subsidiary for the first 12 months
following its acquisition by the Group
and HK$15,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December
2001, the first additional consideration
to the Seller was quantified to be
HK$2,500,000 and the amount was

settled in cash during the year.

31.

A

(a)

BEAREE

U]

REEE R NEBEER —
XPBEMERGEAENR

4912,472,6298 L (—ZEZ
— % 121,052,481 L) °
R-TTTHE REEA
BYE=F([BH]1) I
_I/E\Egjfﬁlﬁfﬁé ([BE W
EADRIPNE: S )P
(IZMBAR]) Z255%H
- 48X {8 536,750,000/
gL E 23,176,000 7T
—ZT T —4%:23,176,000
BIL)REEBD LRS-

II\ 4}}{

SN IR B E W E
BRWEBIE TS N E
ZEIME:

(1) E—FEIETD
15 7% [T |88 & 7] AR

8 Az BB
% & A
15,000,0007%
mo A& A8

Bz B E MU
6,200,000 7T &t

N
/1

¥

BE-ZZT—F+
ZA=+—HI#F
E-XNFEFZ
£ — £ FE H

REEEHE R
2,500,000/ 7T © %
KEENFAUR

PANG/E=IN
B
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31. COMMITMENTS (continued) 31.  EE )
(a) Capital commitments (continued) (a) BEARRE (B
(2) The second additional consideration (2) FE_EBEIINRED

was calculated by multiplying
HK$11,170,000 by the quotient of the
audited profit after tax of the
Subsidiary for the second 12 months
following its acquisition by the Group
and HK$27,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December
2002, the second additional
consideration to the Seller was
quantified to be HK$3,200,000 of
which HK$2,430,000 was settled in
cash during the year.

(3) The third additional consideration is to
be calculated by multiplying
HK$14,080,000 by the quotient of the
audited profit after tax of the
Subsidiary for the third 12 months
following its acquisition by the Group
and HK$34,000,000.

Half of the additional consideration may be
satisfied either by way of cash, or by the
allotment and issue of the equivalent value of
shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the
Company, at the option of the Group, with
reference to the closing prices of the
Company’s shares as quoted on The Stock
Exchange on the relevant dates of the
payments. Pursuant to the S&P Agreement,
the number of shares to be allotted and issued
to the Seller shall not be equal to or exceed
9.9% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time, or otherwise the
consideration shall be paid in cash. Further
details of the transaction and the adjustment
basis of the additional consideration are set
out in the Company’s circular to the
shareholders dated 15 August 2000.

%M B A R ER
SEWKEEE @
+Z@ER 2 EEZ
Br B & om A B
27,000,000/ 7T M
EHEBRAT1S 2 8k
LA 11,170,000/ 7T
A&

HE-_ZT —_F+
—A=+—BL1LF
ER ZFEH
ZE-_EFHEIMIE
woE B B A
3,200,000 T &
72,430,000/ T2
RERNNUNRE &

=E
/B °

(3) BEZFHINET
15 5% I B A B E AR
FEEKEEZEE =M
+Z@R 2 EE%
B R % E R &
34,000,000 7T
EHEBRTEZ 8k
14,080,0005% 7T &t

P
= o
S

BOIREFHAIRAKHE
BEURSIEZRER
AR N AEBENMNKARE
B 22 P P i 2 U 7 M8 1R A
RHERETHSEEZE
AR AT FAEEO.10
BT 2 77 AT e k&
BEEW# SERERETT
BEHZBMEBEB THEE
R BaRQRERE %
IIRAZ9.9% « BAIE
REAAR ST ZIEAR
SRBIREHEEELZ
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31.

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a)

Capital commitments (continued)

(iii)

In 2000, the Group entered into a sale and
subscription agreement (the “Acquisition
Agreement”) with, inter alia, an independent
third party (the “Vendor”) to acquire 2,710
existing issued shares (the "Existing Shares”)
and to subscribe for 4,880 new shares (the
“New Shares”) in DMX. The considerations for
the Existing Shares and the New Shares were
HK$50,000,000 (the "Existing Shares
Consideration”), subject to the adjustments
detailed below, and HK$90,000,000 (the
“New Shares Consideration”), respectively.
Immediately upon the completion of the
Agreement, the Group owned 51% of the
issued share capital of DMX.

Pursuant to the Agreement, HK$10,000,000
of the Existing Shares Consideration was paid
upon the completion of the Agreement (the
“Completion”) during 2001. The remaining
balance of HK$40,000,000, subject to
adjustments, is payable in three instalments.
HK$20,000,000, HK$10,000,000 and
HK$10,000,000 of the Existing Shares
Consideration will be settled to the Vendor if
the audited profit after tax of DMX for the
year ended 31 December 2001 (the “2001
PAT"), the aggregate of the 2001 PAT and the
audited profit after tax of DMX for the year
ending 31 December 2002 (the “Cumulative
2002 PAT"), and the aggregate of the
Cumulative 2002 PAT and the audited profit
after tax of DMX for the year ending 31
December 2003 (the “Cumulative 2003 PAT")
reach HK$11,600,000, HK$30,500,000 and
HK$59,500,000, respectively.

31.

IR (\)

(a)

EAREE (F)

(iii)

RZEEZTF AEEHH
(BB —BUFE=F&
(rgrl)slx—mEeER
REEWw®E ([ZpE]) A
U B DMXE BS B B 1T BR 1D
2,710 (TREBERMHB]) &
REEF D 4,8808% ([ #7h%
7)) - RERG RFRHDZ
KB % B A&50,000,000%
T (IBEAERORE]) (7]
ETXFTatiz %) &
90,000,000 7T ( [ A% 5
RAE]) - B BEZ % 5T X
% RNEE KB DMXE B
TAZ251% °

f&%}i%ﬁfﬁ%%'ﬁé:;ﬁ%ﬁf

FORABRMOMREE
710,000,000/ 7T B R %
Tk ([R5 7T/ )
{5 i #2%840,000,0005%
T (A FHREE) B X
fefMDMXEBE T —F
+—A=+t—HLFEZ
LEZBBREEN([ZF
T-FHRBBEN]) E
11,600, ooo,%rc —ET—
F R R A EDMXE &
—ETE_F+=ZA=+—
HEFEZEEZBIE
HHN([ZEE-_FE2EH
g m F 1) 2 @8 E
30,500,000 TR — T &
—FRERBEE N &
DMXE = — & & =
F+_A=+—HIEFE
2R EBEZER B E R F
(IZZEZ=ZFR2BEKHE
w Mol ) z B E
59,500,000/ yt - A1 38 A %
188 2 20,000,000 7T »
10,000,000% T &
10,000,00078 7T 15 & 45 1+
FEH-
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31. COMMITMENTS (continued) 31. EE @
(a) Capital commitments (continued) (a) BARRE (B)
Should the 2001 PAT, Cumulative 2002 PAT i —FTFE - FRHIRK
and Cumulative 2003 PAT exceed wm AN 2 ZF R
HK$19,000,000, HK$50,100,000 and BRBeREIRER_-ZTE=
HK$97,800,000 , respectively, or fall below FRBERMEE A
HK$11,600,000, HK$30,500,000 and 2 Bl 8 % 19,000,000/%8
HK$59,500,000, respectively, the remaining JT * 50,100,000/ 7Tt &
Existing Shares Consideration will be adjusted 97,800,000/ 7T * % &
based on the 2001 PAT, Cumulative 2002 PAT 7 11,600,000/ 7T °
and Cumulative 2003 PAT, respectively. Further 30,500,000% Tt &
details of the transaction and the basis of 59,500,000 7t * Al 3R A A%
adjustments are set out in the Company’s MREZHBEFRRE=-F
circular to the shareholders dated 5 December T-FRHEREN T
2000. “EREBRBEREN RS
TE=ZFREBRBEEF
FTURAR ZBEXSHRAE
EREE-FPHBHARE
RANR_ZEZF+ R
THBBRERZBEHA-
For the New Shares Consideration, the REERBE_TT_F
remaining consideration of HK$35,000,000 +-A=+t—BULHFE B
was settled by the Group in cash during the EHUReENTROR
year ended 31 December 2002. B #2%835,000,0007% 7T °
For the remaining balance of the Existing ERRAERNDRESRER
Shares Consideration payable of 40,000,000% 7T+ E &
HK$40,000,000, HK$20,000,000 was settled 20,000,000 T B & B R
by the issue and allotment of 30,769,231 FRIEFR0.655 L2 B
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.10 1B BT REBEARAER
each during the year at a price of HK$0.65 HEO0I10B Lz T @k
per share (note 27(a)). A further amount of 30,769,231 &8 (Ff &%
HK$10,000,000 was offset against the 27(a)) * % 5M10,000,0007%
consideration receivable in relation to the TLIE BN F A S DMXZ
disposal of DMX during the year (note 30(e)). FE YR B (W
As at balance sheet date, the remaining 30(e) cREEE B BAERMD
balance of the Existing Shares Consideration KRB #: % A10,000,0007%

was HK$10,000,000 (note 23(b)). 7t (B aE23(b)) ©
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31. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a) Capital commitments (continued)

According to the Agreement, the Group may,
at its sole discretion, elect to satisfy the whole
or any part of the remaining balance of the
Existing Shares Consideration by the issue and
allotment of such number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each in the Company (the
“Consideration Shares”) to the Vendor
calculated by reference to the average of the
closing prices of the Company's shares as
quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the five trading days immediately
before the relevant dates of payments.
However, if the exercise of the right of election
would result in the Vendor becoming
interested in 10% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company at the relevant time,
the Group shall pay the Existing Shares

Consideration in cash to the Vendor.

31.

IR (\)

(a) BARERE (B)

RBZHE NEE T RE
BEBERMEFETR
REEEBE2ARAT
B E{E0.105% 7T & &
(TRERD]) 27X
ZEHEMBHRE KD
REZH#HE MAEBRER
MEBEKL2BANBRG
ZRE KA A A E
RHRAEERBAERZ SN
BRAR @R FHWE
B8R Wit _RE
BERERKERERIEELN
REIREBEREEBETR
A2 10% 30 bA B2 - RIS
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31.

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

Operating lease arrangements

The Group leased certain of its office premises under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for office
premises are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to five years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to

the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2002, the Company and the Group
had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and

buildings falling due as follows:

31.

(b)

120

A (8

433 2
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HEZH

RELLHEL . AEEHED
BTFEYELE-WERRLR
R—ERFIAEHEGRR R
EFXMPXNRESR AHREAR
BERDSRAENHERE-

R_ZBZ-_&F#+-A=+—H0 1§
BAEE L REFH A ERELE
A AR ARAEEETHRE
FEMARRZER S LEET:

Company

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Within one year —FR 2,483 2,117 1,007 698
In the second to fifth years, F_ZEFHF
inclusive (BEMF
BEEAN) 1,268 324 740 -
3,751 2,441 1,747 698

Save as aforesaid, the Company and the Group did not have

any other significant commitments as at 31 December 2002.

B EXPiESN RARRAEER - F
EoF+ A=+ -HEHECMEMER

L



32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. HAEME

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided REEB ARVBRRABE2IARE

for in the financial statements were as follows: (=9 N

Company

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THET THETT THETT

Guarantees in respect RENEPFPRHERE
of performance bonds in KR
favour of contract

customers

Guarantees given to finance T FAAQAFE T
lease companies in respect EECREME
of the finance lease BERimiE T
facilities granted to certain B EFME
directors of the Company DRI ZER

Guarantees given to banks in % ¥ & T I &
connection with banking ~EIR (FAR
facilities granted to certain i 2 DMX*)
subsidiaries and (to DMX RITERMA T
disposed of during BIT 2 ER
the year*)
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 32. HAREEH®

AEERBETFEANCHEAEEET
DMXEBZHRITERG T — KRBT
60,000,000 TR - ZERE BN =
EE=ZF_A-_tMNHEKIE-

* The Group provided guarantees of HK$60,000,000 to a bank *
for banking facilities granted to the DMX Group, a subgroup
of the Group which was disposed of during the year. The
guarantee was subsequently terminated on 24 February 2003.

RZZE—F+=-FA=+—H WERQ
Al RDMXE 5 R 8 A TR RITE KA
#71,106,0008 L (Z T T — F:
14,909,0007% 7T) . 4,825,000/8 T (=
T T —4:16,285,00087T) °

As at 31 December 2002, the banking facilities granted to
the subsidiaries and DMX were utilized to the extent of
approximately HK$1,106,000 (2001: HK$14,909,000) and
HK$4,825,000 (2001: HK$16,285,000), respectively.

The Group had a contingent liability in respect of possible
future long service payments to employees under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance, with a maximum possible
amount of HK$553,000 as at 31 December 2002, as further
explained in note 3 to the financial statements. The contingent
liability has arisen as a number of current employees have
achieved the required number of years of service to the Group,
to the balance sheet date, in order to be eligible for long
service payments under the Employment Ordinance if their
employment is terminated under certain circumstances. A
provision has not been recognised in respect of such possible
payments, as it is not considered probable that the situation
will result in a material future outflow of resources from the

Group.

B IS R M A3 — PR AREER
EE-_FF+ A=+ —BREBEEBERREK
B AEIEENEESNORERSE S
B A AR P fEmES53,000% T o & 3k

REERHNETHENRBEENEE
EEARBAEENFHE B REEDIPT

EEFH HEFHETRERERRE BB
EREREMRBE - ANEERBZIB
RATRAEEHEEERERRERERNR
K B R B 5% AT R Sk H R AR E 4
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

33.

In addition to those disclosed in elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties and connected persons during the year:

FHREAIXRZREERS

BEBMREMA D AREEIN RAE
B AEEABHEATREEANALET
AT 5:

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Purchases of information MATREEREAEMENE®:
technology products from:
Related companies BHERQT
— certain members of the —ERDMNER
Datacraft Asia Ltd Z2EFREB AR (H:E)
Group (note) - 225
— a company in which a —ARRAMB AR —H
director of a EEEESER AR
subsidiary of the
Company has a
beneficial interest 81 2,346
— a company in which a —AREIMRBAGT —RES
director of a FAEEE QT
subsidiary of the
Company is also
a director 1,016 -
Sales of information MATRARHEEMEMNE®:
technology products to:
— a company in which —ARRA—MBARIZES
directors of a FEEF 2N
subsidiary of the
Company are also
directors 4,553 11,619
Rental income received from: B LA~ & J7 W BUAH € U A -
— a company in which —AREBEB19.9%#E 2 A 7A
the Group has a 19.9%
equity interest - 526
— a company in which a —ARRAIMBAR —REEHE
director of a subsidiary EmiEm s N7
of the Company
has a beneficial interest 171 307
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 33.
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

December 2002 —ET-_F+=-A=+—H

Annual Report 2002 4 ¥

FHREAIXRZRBERS (#)

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Proceeds from sale of a MAAR—BESZHER
motor vehicle to a director 2 FT1830E
of the Company - 257
Proceeds from sale of a MARR—ZEBIEFLEE
motor vehicle to a resigned JRE Z 115 B
director of the Company - 664
Advance to an investee HERERTAZEK
company (note 17) (Kt&E17) 12,439 8,329
Bank loan secured by a RARRIMBAR —BLHE
corporate guarantee from & B BA 2 R HE R VR HE 1
a minority shareholder ZIRITER
of a subsidiary of the
Company - 935
Corporate guarantee RETFTFAELEARAEEHET
provided to a banker for DMXE & 2 R 17 B 3 M 2 1
banking facilities granted BN AER (B EE32)
to the DMX Group,
a subgroup of the
Group which was disposed
of during the year (note 32) 60,000 -

Note:  Mr. Derek Peter Althorp, a director of the Company B & -

who resigned as a director on 22 October 2001, is a
director of Datacraft Asia Ltd., a company listed on
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
Mr. Luk Chung Po, Terence, a director of the
Company, resigned as a director of a member of
the Datacraft Asia Ltd group during the prior year.

R-EE—F+A -+ -_HETAAT
EEMEEEEAENNMEESRRS
FMERAR EMZERTENERZE
H ARREEHEABAEEFER EE
BENEB-—KERARIZESTHS-
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33.

34,

35.

—ET-_F+=-RA=+—H

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the above related party
transactions were entered into by the Group in the ordinary
course of business and on terms agreed with the minority
shareholders and related companies. The directors consider
that these transactions were made according to prices and

conditions similar to those offered to other third parties.

Details of the terms of the outstanding balances with related
parties and minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries at
31 December 2002 are set out in notes 19, 20, 22 and 23 to

the financial statements.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in notes 2 and 4 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of certain new and revised
SSAPs and the disposal of DMX during the current year, the
accounting treatment and presentation of certain items and
balances in the financial statements and certain supporting
notes have been revised to comply with the new requirements
and to give more details about the Group's current business
operations. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have
been made and certain comparative amounts have been

reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 16 April 2003.

33.

34.

35.

FREAIXRZRBERS (#)

E=ZRALRAMEALR SN AKERE
BEEBHRELHERREEBER AW
EZBETET - EETRARZERHZER
RAGRIFEG T HME =& 2 % RIEFAE
#e

R-ZEE-_F+_A=+—HEBHEA
TRETHBARLHEBRR 2 REEEK
NGB R ERMIEE19 0 20 22 /%
230

LE®E 8

IR 2 R4 — T M R A
FRERMNE T REETETENN R
HEDMX - MIEHmERZETHEREHRRK
ETHMEZEFRETARERTACHE
HAR UFaMAE TREEZARAN
SEREEB AN B BEHETE
FERABIEHDEE THRESE UK
BARFEZE2HIEA-

MBHR2ME

EFgN_TT=FMOATNERERE
RETHEHRK-
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